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Statement of compliance 
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Honourable Simon O’Brien MLC  
Minister for Finance; Commerce; Small 
Business.

Honourable Peter Collier BA DipEd MLC, 
Minister for Education; Energy; Indigenous 
Affairs.
 
In accordance with section 61 of the 
Financial Management Act 2006, I 
hereby submit for your information and 
presentation to Parliament, the Annual 
Report of the Department of Finance for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2012.  

The Annual Report has been prepared 
in accordance with the provisions of the 
Financial Management Act 2006. 

Anne Nolan, 
Director General
11 September 2012

About this report
This report is published in electronic 
format, complete and in sections.  

The online version can be obtained from 
the Department of Finance website at  
www.finance.wa.gov.au

The report can be made available in other 
formats on request to the Department.

Throughout this report, there are hyperlinks 
which are active when the report is read 
electronically. Some hyperlinks may refer 
to other online publications that may 
require internet access.

If a printed copy of this report is required, 
the Department encourages the use of  
recycled paper.  If this is a printed copy and 
you have finished reading and no longer 
wish to retain it, please pass it on to other 
interested readers or dispose of it in your 
recycled paper waste.

http://www.finance.wa.gov.au
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Overview
Year in Review

The Department of Finance was 
established on 1 July 2011 with a diverse  
scope of finance functions.

There are six business units within the 
Department:

• Building Management and Works
• Government Procurement
• Shared Services
• State Revenue
• Public Utilities Office
• Corporate Services

The Department is responsible for providing 
Government with quality information and 
advice to assist it in making appropriate 
decisions, delivering revenue and grant 
administration services to the community, 
and playing a strong role in facilitating 
the achievements of other government 
departments.

While focusing initially on establishing 
Finance as a single agency with multiple 
business units in locations across the 
State, the Department’s teams moved 
quickly to set out its direction, goals and 
values. These were detailed in Strategic 
Directions 2012 – 2015, which became the 
Department’s guiding document.

Some of the major achievements of the 
year included:

• Submission to Cabinet of options, 
budgets and timeframes for the 
decommissioning of Shared Services. 
All fourteen recommendations 
submitted by the Department to Cabinet 
were approved in December 2011

• The Decommissioning Program 
commenced in January 2012 and 
significant progress was made in its first 
six months including the completion of 
the exit schedule and the transition of 
responsibility for two functions – human 
resources and recruitment, from Shared 
Services back to client agencies

• The near completion of Phase 1 of the 
Government Office Accommodation 
Master Plan by Building Management 
and Works. This will result in avoided 
costs of $18 million per year with up to 
$25 million per year expected by 2015

• The creation of the Government 
Procurement Funding and Contracting 
Services Unit, as part of the sustainable 
funding and contract reform initiatives

• The implementation of the Delivering 
Community Services in Partnership 
Policy and associated procurement 
reforms

• The completion of the $1.2 billion 
Building the Education Revolution 
program by Building Management and 
Works

• The establishment of a whole-of-
government Microsoft Enterprise 
Agreement by the Government 
Procurement business unit, covering 
some 365,000 licences and $38 million 
per annum expenditure

• The finalisation of new Common Use 
Arrangements for finance, payroll 
and Human Resource solutions by 
the Government Procurement team 
working with Shared Services

• Assessing over $6 billion in revenue 
and paying around $200 million in 
grants, subsidies and concessions

• Progress in the ongoing Revenue 
Systems Modernisation project by 
the State Revenue team, including 
advances in the Revenue Online 
(ROL) system, which is expected to be 
delivered in 2012-13

• The establishment of the Public 
Utilities Office and the finalisation of 
Energy2031, an initiative designed 
to clarify what is required to ensure 
Western Australians have affordable, 
reliable, secure and sustainable 
energy in the coming decades

• Relocating many staff from the 
Department as part of the Government 
Office Accommodation Master Plan 
strategy

http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=15910
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=15910
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=460&linkidentifier=id&itemid=460#facs
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=460&linkidentifier=id&itemid=460#facs
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=12662
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=12662
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=12662
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=3790&linkidentifier=id&itemid=3790
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=3790&linkidentifier=id&itemid=3790
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=13638
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Establishment of the Department 
of Finance
The  Department of Finance was 
established under the Public Sector 
Management Act 1994 on 1 July 2011 and 
reports to the Honourable Simon O’Brien 
MLC, Minister for Finance; Commerce; 
Small Business. 

On 31 March 2012, the Department’s role 
expanded to include responsibility for the 
newly created Public Utilities Office with a 
focus on energy issues.

As a consequence, the Department also 
reports to the Honourable Peter Collier 
BA DipEd MLC, Minister for Education; 
Energy; Indigenous Affairs.

Overview of the Agency

Our purpose

The Department’s purpose is to provide 
quality advice and services to facilitate the 
achievement of Government’s objectives.

It achieves this through:  

• Leadership and strategic advice to 
Government on initiatives to improve the 
operations and management services 
in the public sector

• Continuous improvement in the 
provision of efficient and effective 
corporate services, procurement and  
non-residential building services to 
government agencies

• The fair and efficient administration of 
revenue laws and the payment of grants 
and subsidies to the community 

• Leading the provision of strategic advice 
and policy development on essential 
services to government

Structure and management
The Department comprises six business 
units.

Building Management and Works 
Leads the management, planning and 
delivery of new government buildings, 
building maintenance and office 
accommodation to support the delivery 
of services to the community and deliver 
value for money.

Government Procurement 
Leads a whole-of-government approach 
to procurement that efficiently meets the 
needs of agencies and delivers value for 
money from public sector procurement.

State Revenue 
Administers revenue laws and grant and 
subsidy schemes in a fair and efficient 
manner for the community.

Shared Services 
Provides human and financial services 
to agencies and is currently leading the 
re-establishment of these services in 
government agencies to cost effectively 
meet these agencies’ needs.

Public Utilities Office 
Leads the provision of advice to 
government on essential services, with a 
focus on energy, to benefit the community 
and business.

Corporate Services 
Provides corporate services to enable the 
Department to efficiently and effectively 
conduct its business.

Our Values

Listening and 
Caring

We work collaboratively and 
openly and treat others with  

fairness and respect. 

We are dedicated to providing 
high quality work which delivers 
value and we constantly seek to 

improve the way we operate.

We lead people and ideas so that 
we can make a positive difference. 
We value the strength that comes 

from diversity. 

We do what we say we will.  
We are reliable, trustworthy and 

inspire confidence. 

We build relationships and promote 
teamwork. We appreciate and  

support people, thereby  
empowering them. 

Commitment

Leadership

Accountability

People Matter
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Organisational Chart
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Executive Team

Anne Nolan
Anne Nolan is Director General of 
the Department of Finance. She is an 
Economist from the University of Western 
Australia and has a wealth of experience 
in leading and developing public sector 
agencies in areas as diverse as State 
development, tax policy, energy policy, 
intergovernmental relations and the role of 
government trading enterprises.

Ray Challen
Ray was appointed to the Deputy Director 
General, Public Utilities Office position at 
the close of the 2011–12 year. Prior to this, 
Ray was a Principal in the Perth office of 
Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC), leading 
an economics and policy group within 
PwC’s consulting practice.

Bill Sullivan
Bill was appointed as the Western 
Australian Commissioner of State 
Revenue in February 2002. He previously 
held various policy and legislation related 
roles in the former Treasury and State 
Taxation Departments. Bill has formal 
qualifications in taxation, economics and 
financial markets.

Rod Alderton
Rod has been the Executive Director 
of Government Procurement, since 
December 2008. He was a former Chief 
Executive Officer for the State Supply 
Commission and has been a Board 
Member of the Commission since June 
2009. Rod has over 20 years experience 
in a range of senior procurement roles.

Stephanie Black
Stephanie is the Executive Director 
of Shared Services.  She joined the 
Department of Finance in July 2011 
coming from the Department of State 
Development.  She has a commercial 
background and worked at senior levels 
in the financial sector for many years.  
Stephanie is a Fellow of FINSIA and a 
Chartered Secretary of Australia. 

Sue Jones
Sue has been Executive Director of 
Corporate Services since April 2008. 
Previously Sue worked in the public 
health system, where she spent ten years 
managing the delivery of health services in 
regional areas. Sue held senior executive 
positions in the Health Department, 
including Acting Chief Executive Officer 
and Director of Operations of Country 
Health.

Jennifer McGrath
Jennifer is the Acting Executive Director 
of Building Management and Works. Her 
background is commercial and corporate, 
having occupied senior management and 
leadership roles for the past 15 years 
across the WA public and university sectors 
as well as the private manufacturing 
sector. Jennifer is a Certified Practicing 
Accountant.

Key Legislation

The Department of Finance complies with 
all relevant legislation that governs its 
functions.

The Department also has responsibility for 
the administration of 31 Acts and collected 
taxes, duties and fees, and paid subsidies, 
grants and rebates during 2011-12, in 
accordance with legislation.

These are listed at Appendix 1 on page 
105.
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Performance Management Framework
With a broad range of functions, the Department contributes directly to four of the Government’s strategic objectives: 
  
•	 Financial and Economic Responsibility
•	 State Building - Major Projects
•	 Results Based Service Delivery
•	 Social and Economic Responsibility

The Department also makes contributions to the remaining goal, Stronger Focus in the Regions.

State Building ‑ Major Projects
Desired Outcome Service

Building strategic infrastructure that will 
create     jobs     and     underpin   Western    Australia’s  
long-term economic development

Value for money from the management of 
the Government’s non-residential buildings 
and public works

Leads the planning and delivery 
of new government buildings
Leads the planning and delivery of 
government building maintenance
Leads the planning and delivery of 
government office accommodation

Financial and Economic Responsibility
Desired Outcome Service

 
Responsibly managing the State’s 
finances through the efficient and 
effective delivery of services, encouraging 
economic activity and reducing regulatory 
burdens on the private sector

Sustainable and transparent public sector 
finances State Fleet service

Due and payable revenue is collected and 
eligible grants, subsidies and rebates paid

Revenue assessment and collection

Grants and subsidies administration
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Results Based Service Delivery
Desired Outcome Service

Greater focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the benefit of all 
Western Australians

Value for money from public 
sector procurement

Facilitate the development and 
management of agency-specific contracts
Development and management of whole-
of-government common use contract 
arrangements

Provision of effective shared 
corporate services

Project management, coordination and 
implementation of the whole-of-government 
shared corporate services reform

Provision of financial and human resources 
services

Social and Economic Responsibility 
Desired Outcome Service

Ensuring that economic activity is 
managed in a socially and environmentally 
responsible manner for the long-term 
benefit of the State

A sustainable, efficient, secure 
and affordable energy sector

Development and implementation of 
energy policy and programs
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Organisational Strategies

One of the Department of Finance 
team’s first tasks was the development 
of its Strategic Directions 2012-2015. 
This details  what the Department’s roles 
and functions are and its way of doing 
business. It also outlines some of its 
major priorities.

Government’s ability to make good 
decisions is underpinned by access to 
quality information and advice, and this 
drives the Strategic Directions focus on 
developing the Department’s capability 
to provide better information and timely, 
reliable and innovative advice.

The Department of Finance also plays 
a significant role in facilitating the 
achievement of the objectives of other 
government departments and delivers 
services direct to the public, such as 
revenue and grant administration.

The people who make up the Department 
enable it to achieve its  Strategic 
Directions 2012-2015.

The Department therefore aims to provide 
its staff with the right tools, skills and 
confidence so that it can be successful in 
fulfilling its goals.

The goals of the Department of Finance 
are to:

• Provide quality services for our 
customers

• Shape and lead the development of 
influential advice

• Build excellent relationships 
• Ensure efficiency and effectiveness in 

our systems and processes
• Invest in our people and our workplace

Strategic Directions 2012-2015 outlines the goals of the Department

Shared responsibilities with other 
agencies

Integral to the success of both the 
Department and the Government is the 
ability to partner with others.

As a central agency, the Department 
works closely across the sector with other 
agencies to provide advice and assistance 
so they can achieve their objectives. 

Additionally the Department leads, 
facilitates and contributes to a number of 
cross-sector initiatives.  



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Agency Performance - Summary KPIs 11Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

Agency Performance ‑ Report on Operations

Financial Targets: Actual Results versus Budget Targets

2011‑12 
Target 
$’000

2011‑12 
Revised (1) 

$’000

2011‑12 
Actual 
$’000

Variation 
$’000

Total cost of services (expense limit) 1,567,357 1,789,494 1,663,274 (95,917)

Net cost of services 214,745 308,146 238,468 (23,723)

Total equity 986,728 1,000,470 983,242 (3,486)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 11,530 (77,286) 67,986 56,456
Approved full time equivalent (FTE) 
staff level – average over the full year 1,420 1,660 1,485 (65)

(1) The Revised Target figures reflect approved Section 25 transfers and other adjustments to the Original 
Target published in the 2011-12 Budget Papers.

Total cost of services

The Department of Finance commenced 
2011-12 with an initial expense limit 
of $1,567.4 million.  This limit was 
increased by $222.1 million to $1,789.5 
million during the year primarily due to: 

• additional funding in Building 
Management and Works (BMW) as a 
result of increases in agencies’ capital 
and maintenance program managed 
by the Department ($70.8 million)

• transfer of funding to the newly 
created Public Utilities Office from the 
former Office of Energy ($20.3 million)

The actual result of $1,663.3 million was 
$126.2 million below the approved target 
of $1,789.5 million and mainly reflects 
lower than budgeted construction and 
maintenance work by BMW on behalf of 
client agencies.  This lower than budgeted 
expense outcome, was matched with lower 
than budgeted client agency revenue.

Net cost of services

The variance of $69.7 million between 
the 2011-12 Actual and the Revised 
Target largely reflects the amortisation of 
infrastructure assets of Shared Services 
which was less than the estimated actual.

Net increase in cash held

The increase in net cash held relative to 
the Revised Target primarily reflects a 
significant decrease in the purchase of non 
current assets mainly vehicles and lower 
than anticipated outflows from operating 
activities.

FTEs

The decrease in the average FTEs 
compared to the Revised Target ceiling is 
mainly due to lags in filling staff vacancies 
and the use of contract staff.

• additional funding for the 
Decommissioning process and the 
continuation of Shared Services 
business activities including write-off 
of infrastructure ($66.9 million)

• transfer of Corporate Services from 
the Department of Treasury ($39.8 
million)

• carryover from the 2010-11 Building 
the Education Revolution program 
funding ($23.3 million)
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Summary of key performance 
indicators

The summary of key performance indicators 
reflects the targets as published in the 
2011-12 Budget Statements. For detailed 
explanations of outcomes and variations 
between target and actual results please 
refer to  the key performance indicator 
information on page 79.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

Government Procurement

Outcome 1: Sustainable and transparent 
public sector finances

The Department’s commitment to this key 
role is reflected in advice to the Government 
on management of the Government’s light 
vehicle fleet.

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Profitability of the State’s 
light vehicle fleet (profit in 
$’000)

$13,581 $23,441

The actual result for 2011-12 was greater 
than target due to higher than anticipated 
revenue from lease over-runs and second 
hand vehicle sales due to world-wide 
supply chain disruptions.

State Revenue

Outcome 2: Due and payable revenue is 
collected and eligible grants, subsidies 
and rebates paid

Key effectiveness indicators for revenue 
collection provide a measure of the 
accuracy of the revenue assessment 
process, the level of compliance by 
taxpayers and the timeliness of processing 
assessments. These are considered the 
key elements in the effective collection of 
revenue.

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Extent to which due 
revenue is collected 87% 91%

Overdue debt as 
a percentage of 
revenue raised.

1.80% 1.26%

Extent to which correct 
grants, subsidies and 
rebates are paid

99% 99%

Government Procurement

Outcome 3: Value-for-money from 
public sector procurement

Value-for-money is a key policy objective 
and ensures public authorities achieve the 
best possible outcome for the amount of 
money spent when purchasing goods and 
services.

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Extent to which client 
agencies agree that 
common use contract 
arrangements achieved 
value-for-money

85% 94%

Extent to which client 
agencies agree that their 
contract arrangements 
achieved value-for-money

85% 95%

Shared Services

Outcome 4: Provision of effective 
shared corporate services

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Progress with the reform of the Western Australian 
public sector for shared services by achievement of 
the following milestones:
number of agencies rolling 
in 4 N/A

percentage of agencies 
rolled in compared to the 
total number to be rolled in

70% N/A

Percentage of services 
provided within established 
timeframes

100% 94%

Accuracy of services 
provided 100% 100%

Average resolution rate 
of enquiries (within six 
working days)

80% 90%
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Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which 
policy and program 
development 
objectives for the 
year are achieved

25% 10.8%

- kilowatt hours 
displaced 4,234,342 1,566,806

- kilowatt hours avoided N/A N/A
Percentage of 
Perth metropolitan 
homes serviced with 
underground power

0.33% 0.38%

For comparative purposes, figures for 
2009-10 and 2010-11 relating to the former 
Office of Energy (as reported in its previous 
Annual Reports) are included in the table 
below.  The figures for 2011-12 are for 
the full reporting period and include nine 
months of data for the Office of Energy and 
three months data for the Public Utilities 
Office.

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which 
policy and program 
development 
objectives for the 
year are achieved 

100% 73.2%

- kilowatt hours 
displaced 16,937,368 10,522,884

- kilowatt hours avoided N/A N/A
Percentage of 
Perth metropolitan 
homes serviced with 
underground power 

53.5% 53.84%

Building Management and Works

Outcome 5: Value-for-money from the 
management of the Government’s 
non-residential buildings and public 
works

Over 2010-11, Building Management and 
Works reviewed its key indicators to better 
measure its effectiveness against its key 
service areas.  These new indicators were 
introduced in 2011-12. 

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Percentage of significant projects in the 
New Buildings program delivered within:
- 10% of approved budget 100% 100%
- three months of approved 
timeframe 100% 64%

Planned maintenance as 
a percentage of the total 
maintenance program

45% 50%

Average office 
accommodation floor 
space per work point

18.0m² 15.9m²

Public Utilities Office 

Outcome 6: A sustainable, efficient, 
secure and competitive energy sector

In April 2012, the Public Utilities Office 
was established following the abolition of 
the former Office of Energy to provide a 
range of services on energy matters to the 
Minister for Energy, the Western Australian 
Government, the energy sector and the 
Western Australian community.

The 2011-12 figures in the table below 
relate to the former Office of Energy for 
the period 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012. 

Key indicators of 
effectiveness

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which 
policy and program 
development 
objectives for the 
year are achieved

75% 62.4%

-kilowatt hours 
displaced 12,703,026 8,956,078

- kilowatt hours avoided N/A N/A

Percentage of 
Perth metropolitan 
homes serviced with 
underground power

53.17% 53.46%

The 2011-12 figures in the table below 
relate to the new Public Utilities Office for 
the period 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012.



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Agency Performance - Summary KPIs 14Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

Service 3: Grants and Subsidies 
Administration

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per 
application/claim 
processed

$8.82 $9.32

Procurement Business

Service 4: Facilitate the Development 
and Management of Agency Specific 
Contracts

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of facilitating 
the development and 
management of agency 
specific contracts as 
a percentage of the 
contract award value

1.4% 2.1%

Service 5: Development and 
management of whole-of-government 
common use contract arrangements

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of developing 
and managing 
whole-of-government 
common use contract 
arrangements as a 
percentage of the total 
annual value of purchases 
through the arrangements

1.2% 1.4%

Key Efficiency Indicators

Procurement Business

Service 1: State Fleet Service

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per 
vehicle of financing 
and managing the 
State Fleet Service

$131 $83

Revenue Business

Service 2: Revenue Assessment and 
Collection

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per land 
tax item assessed $11.07 $9.93

Average cost per 
insurance duty client $808.66 $665.85

Average cost per 
pay-roll tax client $543.33 $455.41

Average cost per 
duties instrument 
assessed manually

$129.23 $151.74

Average cost per 
duties instrument 
assessed electronically

$16.61 $25.95

Shared Service Business

Service 6: Project management, 
coordination and implementation of the 
whole-of-government shared corporate 
services reform

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Progress with the reform of the Western Australian 
public sector for shared corporate services within 
budget:
- delivery of project within 
budgeted target ($ million) $17.536 N/A

Service 7: Provision of financial and 
human resources services

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of processing financial 
services per transaction $38.96 $33.29

Cost of providing human 
resource/payroll services 
per agency headcount

$2,464 $4,018
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Building Management and Works 
Business

Service 8: Leads the planning and 
delivery of new Government buildings

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage of 
the total annual value of 
the planning and delivery 
of capital works projects

4.5% 5.1%

Service 9: Leads the planning and 
delivery of Government building 
maintenance

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage 
of the annual value 
of maintenance 
services delivered

10.4% 10.2%

Service 10: Leads the planning 
and delivery of Government office 
accommodation

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage of 
the value of gross rentals 
of buildings and office 
accommodation managed

11.6% 12.1%

Public Utilities Office Business

Service 11: Development and 
Implementation of Energy Policy and 
Programs

The figures in the table below relate to 
the former Office of Energy for the period  
1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012:

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine 
policy and program tasks $4,400 $4,655

Average cost of policy 
projects and program $90,000 $63,144

Average cost of processing 
sustainable energy 
incentive applications

$210 $282

The figures in the table below 
relate to the new Public Utilities 
Office for the period 1 April 2012 to  
30 June 2012:

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine 
policy and program tasks $4,400 $4,218

Average cost of policy 
projects and program $90,000 $45,211

Average cost of processing 
sustainable energy 
incentive applications

$210 $487

The figures in the table below include nine 
months of data for the Office of Energy and 
three months data for the Public Utilities 
Office:

Key indicators 
of efficiency

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine 
policy and program tasks $4,400 $4,544

Average cost of policy 
projects and program $90,000 $57,547

Average cost of processing 
sustainable energy 
incentive applications 

$210 $315
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Agency Performance
The first priority for the Department of 
Finance in 2011-12 was to establish itself as 
an agency which provides quality services 
and advice. 

Building Management and Works

2011-12 saw the delivery of another 
significant building program, particularly for 
the Departments of Education and Health.

With the first phase of master planning 
office accommodation nearing completion, 
the priority shifted to the next phase – 
further Central Business District (CBD) 
consolidation and decentralisation and 
collocation in the regions.

The need to continuously improve systems 
and processes was also a major focus over 
2011-12.

Government Procurement

During 2011-12 Government Procurement 
began to implement reforms associated 
with the Delivering Community Services 
in Partnership Policy, a major whole-of-
government funding and contract initiative 
introduced on 1 July 2011. 

The initiative aims to bring sustainable 
funding and contract reform to the 
delivery of services to the community. The 
Department’s role is to provide guidance 
and support to both the public and not-for-
profit sector.

More broadly across the public sector, 
effort has been made to significantly 
increase procurement skills in agencies 
through a new training, education and 
awareness-raising program for officers at 
all levels with an increasing emphasis on 
the regional areas.

Shared Services

Following the Government’s acceptance 
of Economic Regulation Authority’s 
recommendation to decommission 
Finance’s Shared Services business, a 
Taskforce was formed in August 2011 to 
develop strategy, budget and timeframe 
options on decommissioning for the 
Government to consider. 

In November 2011, the Department 
presented a number of options for the 
decommissioning of Shared Services. 
The Taskforce consulted with client 
agencies, service and systems providers, 
and evaluated numerous models for 
decommissioning. 

The final report presented to government 
included fourteen recommendations 
which would deliver the best value-for-
money outcome in the implementation 
of replacement corporate services 
arrangements and would have buy-
in from client agencies. All fourteen 
recommendations, including funding 
requirements, were approved by 
government in December 2011.

In January 2012 a two-year 
decommissioning program commenced 
and the decommissioning office was 
established at Shared Services. The 
objective of the program is to ensure that 
all agencies successfully transition from 
Shared Services to individual corporate 
services solutions by the end of 2013.

The focus of the decommissioning office 
has been on engagement with agencies 
to support them in transition planning, 
and provide choices for them through 
new Common Use Arrangements for 
relevant systems and services. The 
development and implementation of the 
decommissioning program has been 
achieved while maintaining services for 
client agencies in the Shared Service 
Centre.

http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=12662
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=12662
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State Revenue

In the area of revenue collection and grant 
administration, the Department’s priority 
continued to be improving customer 
service and reducing red tape, without 
compromising the revenue base. 

Contributing to this, there was an ongoing 
focus on web-based self-assessment 
services, adjustments to a range of 
practices, simplification of grant application 
processes and improvements to the way 
customers are informed as part of audit 
exit interviews.

The continuing focus on online services for 
these customers was rewarded by growth 
in the usage of these service channels.

Public Utilities Office

Over the three months that the Public 
Utilities Office commenced within the 
department a priority has been on 
improving the capacity of the office and to 
advise Government on energy policy and 
the delivery of energy utility services in the 
State.

In 2011-12 the Office progressed the 
Strategic Energy Initiative, Energy2031, 
with completion expected early in 2012-13.  
This will set out a vision for energy over the 
next 20 years and pathways for government 
policy to ensure the sustainable provision 
of energy infrastructure and services.

The Office has also led and developed a 
whole-of-government approach to Pilbara 
energy supply, supporting the substantial 
development in this region.

Corporate Services

Corporate Services played a significant 
role in the separation of the previous 
Department of Treasury and Finance 
into two independent departments with 
autonomous systems and procedures. 

The transitioning of new businesses into 
the Department had a significant impact 
on information and communication 
technology services.

In 2011-12 Corporate Services resumed 
responsibility for human resources and 
people development services from Shared 
Services.

The creation of the Public 
Utilities Office and its 
transition from the Office 
of Energy was also 
facilitated by Corporate 
Services.

The strength of the Department 

comes from the diversity 

of our business activities, 

people and experience

The addition of the Public Utilities Office welcomed 80 new staff with a wealth of skills and experience

http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=13638
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Report on Operations

Provide quality services 
for our customers

The Department aims to provide quality 
services across government and the 
community. 

Quality services means:

• Our services are timely, reliable, 
relevant and responsible

• Our value-add improves outcomes for 
agencies and government

• People seek us out for advice and 
service and have confidence in us

• Customers can make more informed 
decisions and achieve better outcomes

Quality Services: Building Management 
and Works

Building Management and Works 
completed 11 new schools in time for 
the start of the 2012 academic year and 
another six primary schools are due for 
completion in time for the 2013 school 
year. 

The $1.2 billion Building the Education 
Revolution program was largely completed 
during the year. The Program Management 
Office, established to deliver the program, 
will continue to manage other large 
programs of work including the provision 
of air cooling to all schools and the ember 
protection of air cooling units in bushfire  
prone areas.

Development of regional capacities was 
further improved during the year – for 
example out of the 62 capital projects that 
were directly managed from the regions, 
26 had a value of greater than $1 million 
and 11 were over $5 million.

Phase one of the Government Office 
Accommodation Master Plan neared 
completion, with almost 5000 public 
servants relocated from 23 agencies, 
across 18 locations.

Fremantle Prison is a major tourist asset 
managed by Building Management and 
Works. In 2011-12 it had almost 180,000 
visitors, an increase of more than nine per 
cent over the previous year.

Improved marketing of the site, more 
education programs and a variety of new 
tour products contributed to the increase. 
The Prison’s commitment to managing 
conservation programs and maintaining 
a high standard of visitor experiences 
were recognised at the 2012 Western 
Australian Heritage Awards, where it 
received the inaugural Judges’ Award for 
consistent excellence in the promotion 
and conservation of the cultural heritage 
of Western Australia. The Prison is the 
State’s only building to be inscribed on the 
World Heritage List.

Quality Services: Government 
Procurement

Government Procurement’s Contract 
Management Advisory Service began 
working with clients to assist them to 
improve their internal governance and 
contract management arrangements in 
2011-12. 

In its first year of operation, the Department 
of Finance was able to articulate its 
strategic goals through the Strategic 
Directions 2012–2015 document and 
progressed these goals throughout the 
year. 

http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=3790&linkidentifier=id&itemid=3790
http://www.finance.wa.gov.au/cms/content.aspx?id=3790&linkidentifier=id&itemid=3790
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The business also reviewed and renewed 
Common Use Arrangements (CUAs) to 
meet the ongoing needs of government 
buyers.

Renewed CUAs and their estimated 
contract value included:
• Freight and Transport services ($5.8 

million)

• Off the shelf uniforms ($12 million over 
five years)

• Document Transfer Services ($15 
million over five years)

• Printed Stationery and Short run 
Copying services ($10 million over five 
years)

• Information and Security Management 
Services ($5 million over four years)

• Audio Visual Solutions ($25 million over 
five years)

• Microsoft - Education Services ($44 
million over six years)

• Notebooks and PCs - tablets and hybrid 
computer panels ($40 million over four 
years)

Implementation of Cabinet’s decision 
to reduce Government fleet costs was 
facilitated by Government Procurement’s 
advice and assistance in fleet saving 
measures.

Further savings were achieved by the 
extension of Government fleet leases from 
a minimum of 40,000 to 60,000 kilometres. 

Government Procurement developed an 
ICT Business Case Framework providing 
independent professional advice and 
feedback for agencies. The framework 
and associated evaluation services were 
successfully piloted by a number of 
agencies.

Quality Services: Shared Services

Shared Services  continued work on 
improving the management of customer 
enquiries through the implementation of 
fast escalation processes and promoting 
direct telephone contact to aid in the 
resolution of enquiries.

A series of comprehensive information 
packs were delivered to clients of Shared 
Services’ Decommissioning Office – these 
covered a diverse array of subjects from 
data migration strategies, to governance 
and reporting arrangements, to the 
decommissioning schedule.

Quality Services: State Revenue

Efforts continued over the year to improve 
customer service and reduce red tape, 
while maintaining the integrity of the 
State’s revenue collection systems. 

State Revenue collected some $6 billion in 
revenue, and disbursed over $200 million 
in grants and subsidies. 

The year was marked by strong growth in 
the pay-roll tax base and subdued property 
market related activity, though the latter 
exhibited an improvement late in the year. 

Client satisfaction is a key metric for this 
goal, and a November 2011 perception 
survey among State Revenue customers 
demonstrated a consistent level of 
satisfaction – 84 per cent of around 2,000 
respondents indicated that they were 
“satisfied” or “very satisfied” with the 
service provided to them by the Office of 
State Revenue in 2011.

Furthermore, 81 per cent of respondents 
indicated that they were “satisfied” or 
“very satisfied” with the accountability and 
transparency of decision-making by State 
Revenue.

Quality Services: Public Utilities Office

The Public Utilities Office made significant 
progress in improving Western Australia’s 
energy security, implementing changes 
made to the Emergency Management 
Regulations 2006 in 2010, including 
appointing a Coordinator of Energy as the 
hazard management agency for supply 
disruptions. A test exercise aimed at 
continuing to build the State’s resilience 
to disruptions was also successfully 
conducted.
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The Renewable Remote Power Generation 
Program (RRPGP) team working within the 
Public Utilities Office was able to deliver 
rebates for renewable energy systems in 
“fringe of grid” and “off-grid” areas, and 
energy efficiency projects in “off-grid” 
areas. The success of this program was 
demonstrated with the opening of the 
Carnarvon Solar Farm, which was partly 
funded through RRPGP.

The implementation of round five 
Major Residential Projects of the State 
Underground Power Program continued. 
As a result, 53.5 per cent of Western 
Australian households now have 
connection to underground power. 

There were further changes to the 
Department’s structure in 2011–12, 
resulting in the closure or termination of 
a number of initiatives. These include the 
Hardship Efficiency Program, with funds  
being reallocated to the new Cost of Living 
Assistance payment and the Solar Schools 
Project, which delivered rebates to over 
400 schools for installing solar power.

We seek to continually innovate 

and improve our service 

delivery by engaging with our 

customers to better assist them 

in meeting their objectives 

Government Procurement took a lead role in providing professional advice to agencies
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The Department of Finance provides a 
leadership role in the provision of strategic 
advice to the State Government.

Leading and shaping influential advice 
includes:

• Providing strategic advice and 
leadership to enhance public sector 
service delivery

• Leveraging our expertise and 
infrastructure to develop whole-of-
government approaches to issues

• Identifying emerging issues and provide 
proactive strategic advice to agencies

• Working with agencies to develop new 
ways of doing things

• Working with industry and community 
to develop regulatory and policy 
frameworks that facilitate the 
achievement of strategic objectives

Shape and lead the development of 
influential advice

Influential Advice: Building 
Management and Works

As part of its lead role in managing a 
560,000 square metre  government 
office accommodation portfolio, Building 
Management and Works developed Phase 
2	 Government	 Office	 Accommodation	
Implementation Plan 2012-18 which 
was endorsed by Government  in March 
2012. The plan was developed following 
consultation with 23 significant agencies. 

During the year, Building Management 
and Works assisted 14 agencies in the 
development of well over 50 capital 
works business cases to aid investment 
decisions by government. Business case 
guidelines were finalised and have been 
made available to agencies. 

The Cost of Public Secondary Schools 
Report completed in partnership with 
the Department of Education outlined a 
set of actions and initiatives that have 
the potential to improve outcomes in the 
delivery of a new secondary school. The 
Departments of Finance and Education 
are now working together to implement the 
recommendations of the report.

Influential Advice: Government 
Procurement

In August 2011, Government Procurement 
launched the Procurement Vocational 
Program, an accredited vocational training 
program to raise the technical skills and 
capabilities of procurement staff across 
the public sector.

Completing the whole program results in 
an internationally recognised qualification 
for the procurement professional. To 
date, 15 agencies and 400 people have 
participated in the program.

The Funding and Contracting Services 
(FaCS) unit continued to lead the 
Government’s sustainable funding and 
contracting reform initiative, through 
the implementation of the Delivering 
Community Services in Partnership 
(DCSP) Policy.

This included developing the Partnership 
Forum’s Capacity Building Implementation 
Plan, informing both capacity building and 
communication initiatives across the public 
and not-for-profit community sectors. 
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Since establishing the FaCS unit in late 
2010-11, Government Procurement has:

• Developed a suite of standardised 
templates for the procurement of 
community services

• Coordinated more than 86 education, 
consultation and training sessions in 
regional and metropolitan areas

• Provided direct agency support via  
out-placed staff at seven agencies and 
two not-for-profit peak bodies

As part of the implementation of the DCSP 
policy, the Department provided more 
than $850,000 across both public and  
not-for-profit sectors to support capacity-
building initiatives and collaborated with 
the Departments of Treasury and the 
Premier and Cabinet to roll out additional 
funding. 

The year saw an increased demand on the 
Department for procurement planning and 
advice from agencies seeking assistance 
with development of complex, high-cost 
and high-profile contracts. These included 
the Fiona Stanley Hospital facilities 
management contract (a potential value of 
$4 billion over 20 years), Commonwealth 
Heads’ of Government Meeting, the Perth 
Arena, the new Children’s Hospital and 
Perth Major Stadium.

Government Procurement continued to 
actively roll out education and awareness 
programs for government buyers and 
suppliers. The Better Buying session, 
an introduction to government buying 
policy and practice, had 177 attendees in  
2011-12.

This information session is being translated 
into an e-learning module, which will 
allow officers in the regions to access 
this information. The New to Quotes and 
Tenders seminar is designed to assist 
suppliers to respond to government 
tenders and has had 468 attendees in 
2011-12.

Influential Advice: Shared Services

As the new Finance Department was 
being established in July 2011, the 
Government decided that it would accept 
the recommendations of the Economic 
Regulation Authority to decommission 
Shared Services. The Minister for Finance 
on behalf of the Government formed a 
Taskforce lead by the Department and 
including senior representatives from 
a number of client agencies of Shared 
Services including Treasury, the Public 
Sector Commission, and Commerce.

The Taskforce was appointed to consult 
with agencies, develop decommissioning 
options, model costs and timeframes, 
and present options and plans to the 
Government before December 2011. 

In November 2011, the Steering Group 
presented a Recommendations Report 
to the Minister for Finance. The report 
included evaluation of numerous models 
for decommissioning, the costs of those 
models, and made recommendations 
about which would be the best value for 
money.

The Government approved all fourteen 
recommendations in December 2011. 
Because client agencies had been 
consulted there was excellent buy-in 
from them to the way forward. Agencies 
will be funded to procure, implement and 
operate their new systems for Finance and 
Payroll. Some agencies will work together 
in clusters which assist in minimising costs 
for small agencies. 

In January 2012 the decommissioning 
program commenced. Over the following 
six months, the focus of the program was 
on giving advice and support to agencies 
to help them prepare for their transition to 
new systems.

Influential Advice: State Revenue

During 2011-12, State Revenue contributed 
to the planning and coordination of a 
number of taxation technical conferences, 
including contributing to the agenda of the 
Taxation Institute’s Annual States’ Taxation 
Conference.
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Such events are intended not only to 
improve the technical knowledge of State 
Revenue staff and tax advisers, but also 
to raise the profile of State taxes in the 
advising community.

The Department also continued to 
support and be actively involved in  
inter-jurisdictional committees with other 
State and Territory revenue offices.

These include:

• The National First Home Owners Grant 
Committee

• Tax Law Committee

•  Business Practices Committee

• Training and Customer Education 
Committee

Furthermore, Western Australia has 
played a lead role in the Revenue Offices’ 
Compliance Committee through its chairing 
and sponsorship of that committee. 

State Revenue worked with the Department 
of Treasury and other key stakeholders 
to advise on the administrative aspects 
of a one-off pay-roll tax rebate for small 
business. 

The rebate for wages paid in relation 
to eligible indigenous employees and 
an exemption for wages paid to new 
employees with a disability was announced 
in the 2012-13 Budget. State Revenue is 
developing the supporting legislation to 
deliver the changes.

The business also assisted the Department 
of Treasury in the formulation of advice to 
the State Government in the lead-up to 
the Federal Government’s Tax Forum in 
October 2011. 

State Revenue worked with Landgate, 
other State and Territory revenue offices 
and National Electronic Conveyancing 
Development Limited on the duties aspects 
associated with implementing a proposed 
national e-conveyancing platform. The first 
property transfers processed through the 
new system are expected to take place in 
2014. 

Influential Advice: Public 
Utilities Office

The Public Utilities Office led the 
establishment of mechanisms to 
strengthen Western Australia’s future 
gas supply and security requirements in  
2011-12. 

Soon after its establishment, the Public 
Utilities Office focused on bringing 
together the  Strategic Energy Initiative, 
Energy2031, which is expected to be 
finalised early 2012-13.

The initiative aims to provide the State with 
a vision over the next 20 years to ensure 
Western Australians have affordable, 
reliable, secure and sustainable energy. 

Working with business and the community, 
the Public Utilities Office undertook a 
range of important initiatives during the 
year, including:

• Managing the contract for the Consumer 
Essentials Program administered by the 
Western Australian Council of Social 
Service

• Working closely with business, 
engaging with the Master Builders’ 
Association of Western Australia, 
the Urban Development Institute of 
Australia and the Housing Institute of 
Australia on implementing the minimum 
six star standard for new homes

• Collaborating with Horizon Power and 
other relevant agencies to develop 
a whole-of-government approach to 
Pilbara energy supply

• Working with a number of government 
agencies to develop regulatory and 
policy frameworks that facilitate the 
development of national energy 
efficiency policies
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• Representing Western Australia on the 
advisory group to the Commonwealth 
Government’s National Energy Savings 
Initiative Working Group to provide 
jurisdictional context to policy analysis 
and modelling. This will feed into 
the Commonwealth Government’s 
consideration of whether to proceed with 
a national energy efficiency scheme

• Representing Western Australia on 
the Greenhouse Energy Minimum 
Standards Legislation Taskforce 
and working towards finalising an 
Intergovernmental Agreement on 
Greenhouse and Energy Minimum 
Standards

• Partnering with the Australian Institute 
of Energy (Perth branch) to plan 
and organise the Energy in Western 
Australia Conference 2012. This 
conference aims to provide industry 
and key stakeholders with an open 
forum to foster discussion on current 
and future energy issues, with over 200 
local energy professionals expected to 
attend the 2012 event

• Involvement in a number of professional 
bodies in the energy industry, including 
the International Association for Energy 
Economics and the Australian Institute 
of Energy. In partnership with the 
institute, the Department co-hosts the 
annual Energy in Western Australia 
conference, which provides professional 
development opportunities for staff

• The Department worked closely with 
the Independent Market Operator on 
the Gas Services Information Project 
to lead the establishment of a Gas 
Bulletin Board and Gas Statement of 
Opportunities. The passage of the Gas 
Services Information Bill on 10 April 
2012 provided for the establishment 
of these programs, which will improve 
the flow of information across the gas 
supply-demand chain and bring much 
needed improvements in transparency 
and competition to the Western 
Australian gas market

We provide strategic advice 

and leadership to enhance  

public sector service delivery

Shared Services focussed on giving advice and support to agencies to help them prepare for the transition to new systems
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Building and maintaining excellent 
relationships with key stakeholders, 
including taxpayers and grant applicants, 
industry and professional representative 
bodies and other government agencies 
at a State and Commonwealth level, is a 
key element of the Department’s Strategic 
Directions.

Building excellent relationship means:

• We work closely with our stakeholders 
to build shared understanding and to 
earn their trust

• We respond to feedback 

• Collaboration and consultation are 
locked into our way of working 

• We communicate using practical, 
accessible and current technologies

• Provide Government with advice on 
which it can rely

Build excellent relationships
Build excellent relationships: 
Building Management and Works

Developing collaborative relationships 
between Building Management and Works 
and various client agencies was a major 
focus in 2011-12.  This was  an important 
step to the business developing shared 
understandings, planning strategically 
and establishing confidence. These 
relationships were key to the delivery 
and management of the Government’s  
non-residential building program.

Coordination meetings continued with key 
asset consumers such as the Departments 
of Education, Health, Corrective Services, 
Attorney General and Police and consider 
the detailed planning, programming 
and delivery of these agencies’ works 
programs. The Department will extend 
these meetings to other major asset 
consumers in future.

The Building Management and Works 
business worked closely with agencies 
to identify improvements in the way the 
facilities management contracts operate 
for the maintenance of government 
buildings. Feedback from agencies will be 
incorporated in future arrangements and 
includes improved contract management, 
maintenance planning and advice for 
agencies.

Building Management and Works is 
also building stronger relationships with 
agencies throughout the regions. The close 
proximity of staff to clients, more face-to-
face interaction and less reliance on third 
parties to deliver services have helped the 
business score highly in quarterly client 
satisfaction surveys. 

In 2011-12 a program was also 
commenced by Building Management 
and Works with the Department of Health 
to develop a shared approach across 
governance arrangements, reporting and 
work management processes, with the 
aim of helping Building Management and 
Works to be more responsive to Health’s 
needs.

Regional staff continued to provide local 
training and education sessions to agency 
procurement staff, as well as advice on 
contracting and policy issues.

Build excellent relationships: 
Government Procurement
Since its establishment, the Funding and 
Contracting Services unit has consulted 
widely with key stakeholders. The unit 
established the Government Community 
Services Procurement Leaders’ Council 
to provide an opportunity for key 
stakeholders from government agencies 
procuring community services to discuss 
the implementation of the Delivering 
Community Services in Partnership Policy 
as a group.
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The Community Services Procurement 
Review Committee provides independent 
peer review for community services 
procurement processes of significant 
value and risk.

In 2011-12 the Funding and Contracting 
Services unit delivered a range of 
awareness, education and knowledge 
building presentations and workshops to 
build the relationship between government 
agencies and the community sector. 
Stakeholder feedback was incorporated in 
the training sessions to better reflect the 
community sector needs.

Government Procurement collaborated 
with the Shared Services Decommissioning 
Team to support agencies in their transition 
from their existing shared corporate 
service arrangements by establishing 
a new Common Use Arrangement for 
finance, payroll and human resource 
services. The arrangement takes a 
whole-of-government approach to the 
procurement of replacement services 
and has an estimated contract value of  
$70 million over eight years.

The ground-breaking Microsoft Enterprise 
Agreement that the Department negotiated 
in 2010-11 was extended to include the 
Department of Education in 2011-12. 
The arrangement now covers 365,000 
licenses, representing an annual spend of 
$38 million. 

The Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 
is the first of its kind in the Asia Pacific 
region and is being used as a model for 
whole-of-government software licensing 
arrangements.

A Chief Information Officer Council of  
14 key agencies, that together represent 
more than 90 per cent of Information 
and Communication Technology (ICT) 
activity of government, was established 
to promote collaboration. The Council is 
seen as a key platform for facilitating the 
adoption of innovation in ICT and best 
practice standards across the sector.

Build excellent relationships: 
Shared Services

Shared Services refocused, to lead in 
forming quality relationships through the 
client interaction forums undertaken by 
the finance, human resources and the 
solutions and technology services areas 
of the Shared Service Centre in 2011-12 
to ensure quality services in the lead up to 
decommissioning.

Customer advice concerning all system 
and process changes in the production 
environment were widely published 
through regular online news articles and 
release notes. Additionally, operational 
updates concerning service delivery 
were provided through subscribed email 
newsletters such as the Weekly Feed and 
eBuzz.

Shared Services held formal client 
interactions with agencies, 75 per cent 
reduction in the number of complaints 
received compared to the previous year 
was achieved, indicating a sustained 
declining trend. Concurrently, the number 
of compliments received from customers 
doubled.

The Shared Services team also undertook 
to inform agencies about issues such as 
funding and business cases, “clustering” 
and transition schedules, people strategy, 
and engagement timelines. The services 
include human resources, finance, payroll 
and supporting services, procurement 
planning and the program process for 
decommissioning. 

A number of workshops were delivered 
covering agency responsibilities in 
resuming tactical human resource 
services and guidance concerning agency 
approaches to their resumption. These 
workshops also presented an opportunity 
for client agencies to ask questions, 
obtain feedback, share information and 
collaborate.

A suite of Frequently Asked Questions 
was produced and made available online 
for ongoing use by stakeholders and 
interested parties.
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Build excellent relationships: 
State Revenue

During 2011-12, work continued with 
State Revenue customers and industry 
bodies to better understand the results of 
the pay-roll tax voluntary compliance pilot 
project and to identify the best strategies 
to achieve the desired outcome.

To identify and better address the needs 
of Western Australian taxpayers and grant 
recipient communities, the Department 
continued to engage and consult with 
industry and professional representative 
bodies. 

This was supported through channels 
such as the State Revenue Liaison 
Committee which meets twice a year 
to bring together representatives from 
a range of industry and representative 
bodies. Meetings provide an opportunity 
for effective dialogue on matters such as 
red tape reduction strategies, stakeholder 
training needs and changes to legislation.

During 2011-12, State Revenue worked 
with other States and Territories to support 
the Government’s existing commitment 
to improve the consistency of pay-roll 
tax legislation and administration across 
Australia.

In addition, State Revenue continued to 
work closely with the Australian Taxation 
Office through the Australian Tax and 
Revenue Office Forum and its associated 
sub-committees, and through ongoing 
involvement in the Commonwealth’s 
Standard Business Reporting initiative. 
These relationships are crucial to ensure 
the efficient sharing of data to improve 
tax administration across the country, not 
only through improved targeting of non-
compliance, but also through better service 
delivery outcomes.

Work also continued in 2011-12 to build 
upon existing Australia-wide cooperation 
and data-sharing arrangements between 
State and Commonwealth revenue 
authorities and other agencies. 

Build excellent relationships: 
Public Utilities Office

The Public Utilities Office worked in 
partnership with the Australian Institute 
of Energy (Perth branch) to plan and 
organise the Energy in Western Australia 
Conference 2012 which will take place in 
October 2012. This annual conference 
provides government agencies, the energy 
industry and major energy consumers with 
a forum to examine on the current state 
and future challenges for the Western 
Australian energy industry. Over 200 
delegates are expected to attend the 2012 
event.

The Public Utilities Office worked closely 
with stakeholders and partners to facilitate 
the implementation and delivery of specific 
policy initiatives and programs. 

For example, the Department managed a 
contract for the Western Australian Council 
of Social Service to deliver the Consumer 
Essentials Program, which works with 
energy consumers, government agencies 
and utility businesses to achieve better 
outcomes in the provision of essential 
services. The Office also worked in 
partnership with the Commonwealth 
Government and applicants to deliver the 
Renewable Remote Power Generation 
Program (RRPGP). The RRPGP provides 
rebates for renewable energy systems in 
“fringe of grid” and “off-grid” areas and 
energy efficiency projects in “off-grid” 
areas. 

To implement and promote programs 
promoting energy efficiency, the 
Public Utilities Office has Memoranda 
of Understanding with the Property 
Council of Australia (Western Australian 
Division), Master Builders’ Association of 
Western Australia, the City of Perth and 
the Australian Institute of Refrigeration, 
Airconditioning and Heating. The Office
worked closely with the Master Builders’ 
Association of Western Australia, the 
Urban Development Institute of Australia 
and the Housing Institute of Australia 
on implementing the minimum “6 Star” 
standard for new homes.
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Key to providing quality services is efficient 
and effective systems and processes.

Effort in 2011-12 centred on ensuring:

• Our processes are easy to use and 
understand and they achieve agreed 
objectives

• We build reliable, robust and adaptable 
systems

• Our systems and processes aid decision 
making

• Business performance continually 
improves through innovation

• Risk and governance practices adapt to 
current issues and trends

Efficient and effective systems: 
Building Management and Works

The introduction by Building Management 
and Works, in 2011-12 of a Project 
Management Framework, and a Project 
and Contract Administration System is 
the first step in developing a system that 
supports business processes and aids 
decision making.

Ensure efficiency and effectiveness in 
our systems and processes

In order to assist both public and private 
sector clients, the Building Management 
and Works unit released the Design for 
Maintenance Minimisation, a handbook of 
design guidelines to reduce maintenance, 
with an emphasis on “green” building 
requirements. 

Master planning is helping government 
to better manage expenditure growth 
through the avoidance of significant 
accommodation costs. To facilitate this, 
the business continued to review and 
update government office accommodation 
policies to align them with the master 
planning approach. 

Master planning has resulted in a need for 
a more consolidated approach as to how 
data is collected and reported. A project to 
improve the quality and timeliness of office 
accommodation data was completed and is 
the first step in addressing both the quality 
and extraction of office accommodation 
data held by the Department. 

In July 2011, Building Management and 
Works expanded online tender facilities 
in the regions for goods and services 
contracting, enabling regional suppliers to 
lodge their tender documents online. The 
new system affords a higher degree of 
security than documents delivered by post, 
email or fax, as well as greater efficiency 
in document handling and distribution. 

In June 2012, the electronic tender 
lodgement facility was successfully trialled 
with selected works’ tenders from the 
Bunbury office.

The collocation of the Department’s 
Government Procurement and Building 
Management and Works businesses at 
the Optima Centre in Herdsman saw the 
merging of two tender offices serving the 
goods and service and works areas. One 
tenders’ office now manages both goods 
and service and works tenders, along with
the tenders of 14 other State Government 
agencies.

Efficient and effective systems: 
Government Procurement
Government Procurement’s ContractsWA 
website was modernised to include 
enhanced functionality. A new Common 
Use Arrangement Supplier Sales Database 
was developed within the procurement 
data warehouse. This automated 
database accurately generates spending 
information for reporting purposes for 
contract managers and client agencies. 

Microsoft Reporting Services, a reporting 
platform and tool, was implemented for 
procurement reporting. Contract managers 
can now conduct their own queries, analysis 
and reporting of supplier sales data and 
contracting information, ensuring they can 
monitor agency spending patterns and 
trends, resulting in more effective contract 
management.
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Procurement’s Funding and Contracting 
Services unit developed a suite of 
contract guides and templates as well 
as terms and conditions to be used by 
all government agencies, standardising 
practice associated with the procurement 
of community services.

In order to ensure the continued refining of 
systems and processes, the Government 
Procurement business also facilitated  
14 major project reviews with a total value 
of over $3.2 billion in 2011-12. Projects 
reviewed included the 2011 Commonwealth 
Heads of Government Meeting, Health’s 
ICT (including the Fiona Stanley Hospital) 
and several infrastructure projects.

The development of an Information 
Security Management Services Common 
Use Arrangement assisted agencies to 
respond to the recommendations by the 
Office of the Auditor General to develop 
and maintain an information security 
management framework in line with the 
ISO 27001/2/5 series of standards.

In addition to these mechanisms, the 
Department developed a capability review 
and compliance assessment framework to 
assess government agency requirements 
with regard to the Delivering Community 
Services in Partnership Policy.

Efficient and effective 
systems: Shared Services

Major system-related work completed 
on time by the Shared Service Centre 
included changes introduced by the Public 
Service and Government Officers’ General 
Agreement 5, covering issues such as 
annualised leave loading payments and 
salary rate increases.

Choice of Super was introduced for Western 
Australian Public Sector employees 
with effect from April 2012. The Shared 
Services team delivered both metropolitan 
and regional client briefing sessions to 
ensure a smooth implementation of this 
important Government initiative.

The Shared Service Centre continued 
to triage enquiries from customers and 
suppliers to ensure quick resolution 
of enquiries. New fast escalation 
processes were introduced. On average,  
1000 customer enquiries were received 
each week by phone, online, facsimile or 
email. 

The use of direct phone contact for 
customers within client agencies was 
trialled and promoted, further streamlining 
the resolution of enquiries and improving 
the experience of users of the Shared 
Service Centre.

The Chief Financial Officer support 
services (CFO Assist) that is delivered to 
smaller client agencies received positive 
acknowledgement from the Office of the 
Auditor General for work in supporting 
client agencies with financial reporting and 
controls.

As part of the Shared Services 
decommissioning, the recruitment function 
was returned to agencies during the year. 

The decommissioning of HR services, 
incorporating the removal and roll-back 
to agencies of tactical human resource 
services, was completed two months 
ahead of schedule.

This removal and roll-back was achieved 
without adversely affecting service delivery 
to client agencies. Excellent feedback was 
received from client agencies.

Efficient and effective 
systems: State Revenue

An ongoing focus in 2011-12 continued to 
be the improvement of the Department’s 
information technology systems and 
processes. This included the Revenue 
Systems Modernisation (RSM) project 
which saw a further three stages completed 
during the year. 
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The five-year RSM project is an important 
project for the State Revenue business. It 
aims to improve its key revenue service 
delivery platform, the Revenue Collection 
Information System (RCIS), and related 
systems.

Additional project stages were delivered 
during 2011-12, including:

• A number of commonly used system 
components rewritten in new supported 
technology

• Architecture designed to link the RCIS 
with the State Revenue document 
management system

• New functionality to assist the objection 
and review aspects of State Revenue’s 
operations

• A new web-based process to better 
manage customer enquiries that 
previously were received via email

The next 12 months will be very challenging 
as the project enters its final year. The 
major deliverable expected in 2012-13 will 
be a new Revenue Online (ROL) system 
- a web-based application that supports  
pay-roll tax, routine transfer duty 
transactions and insurance duty. It is being 
developed in up-to-date technology which 
will be supported into the foreseeable 
future.

To support improved service levels, a 
range of initiatives was undertaken during
the year to reduce red tape, including:

• Removal of the requirement for first 
home owner grant applicants, lodging 
with approved agents to have supporting 
documents certified 

• Updated forms and publications to 
provide clearer advice to customers 
on supporting information that can 
be provided to expedite the duties 
assessment process

• Trialling of email communications in 
the areas of objections and urgent 
duties requests, to reduce the time for 
customers to receive correspondence 
and action

• Improvements to Commissioner of 
State Revenue’s Practices on matters 
such as related party transactions 

The first component of a payment and 
service channel strategy to provide more 
accessible and convenient payment 
channels to State Revenue customers 
was endorsed in June 2012. Included in 
this is a planned broadening of customer 
credit card payment options in 2012-13 
commencing with land tax.

Further work will be progressed in  
2012-13 to examine improved service 
delivery, particularly through better use 
of electronic channels including social 
media and SMS to improve customer 
communication as part of the broader 
service strategy.

Progress was also made in improving 
data exchange arrangements via the 
deployment of a web services facility 
between State Revenue and local 
authorities as part of the administration of 
pensioner and senior rates’ concessions.

State Revenue’s ongoing efforts to move 
more routine duties transactions into the 
web-based self-assessment regime are 
gaining traction in terms of the number of 
transactions and users.

Efficient and effective systems: 
Public Utilities Office

Under the Coordinator of Energy’s 
leadership, the Department’s Public Utilities 
Office develops and maintains strategic 
and operational plans for managing supply 
disruptions, and carries out annual test 
exercises. The 2012 exercise was held in 
June.



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Agency Performance - Report on Operations 31Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

The Department is committed to supporting 
its people to have the confidence to 
perform at their best and to recognise their 
success. It seeks to encourage teamwork 
and to help people fulfil their career 
aspirations and build technical excellence 
where required. It also aims to provide a 
safe and healthy environment in which to 
work.

Investing in our people and our workplace 
requires:

• Our people have the confidence to 
perform at their best

• Success is recognised 

• Teamwork is encouraged

• The work environment is safe and 
healthy

• Technical excellence is developed

• Our people are able to fulfil their career 
aspirations

Investing in our people and 
our workplace: Corporate 

In 2011-12 the Department finalised its 
Workforce and Diversity Plan. The plan 
provides the Department with a roadmap 
to manage its workforce from 2012-2015.

Invest in our people and our workplace The Workforce and Diversity Plan is 
designed to bring staff into the agency 
with the right skill sets, to enable ongoing 
professional development and to identify 
strategies to manage the human resources 
within the Department.

The Reconciliation Action Plan was also 
revised and is guided by the principle – 
awareness to acceptance to action. It 
seeks over time to identify actions that will 
assist indigenous people to close ‘the gap’ 
and gain equality in all aspects of life.

The Human Synergistics program 
continued to be used to help build a 
positive culture and the Organisational 
Development team, deployed throughout 
the Department, worked with business 
units on a variety of initiatives.

The Performance and Development 
Plan is seen by the Department as an 
opportunity for employees and managers 
to build positive relationships based on 
regular constructive conversations.

Highly valued by the Department as a 
process to acknowledge achievements 
and identify development opportunities for 
staff, it plays a major role in helping staff 
recognise the role they play in achieving 
the Department’s strategic direction.

The Department recognises the need for 
ongoing development of future leaders 
and managers as a routine requirement 
of its business. In particular, there are the 
consequences of an ageing workforce as 
well as an increasingly mobile workforce. 
Leadership and management development 
are therefore a priority for the Department.

Leadership, succession management 
and staff engagement were all areas of 
strong focus in 2011-12 as the Department 
sought to build staff capability and ensure 
a more productive and satisfying work 
environment.

Over 100 employees were given the 
opportunity to participate in leadership 
and management programs, some of 
which involved work-based projects and 
residential activities. In 2011-2012, the 
following leadership and management 
programs were offered or promoted to the 
Department’s employees:

• The Leadership and Management 
Development Program

• The Future Leaders’ Program

• The Government Procurement 
Leadership Program

• SPRINGBOARD (Educational 
Development Program)
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• The Mentoring Program

• The Foundations of Leadership 
Program (PSC)

• The Pathways to Leadership Program 
(PSC)

• The Public Sector Management 
Program (PSC)

• ANZSOG Executive Master of Public 
Administration

• ANZSOG Executive Fellows Program

The Department believes that investing 
in people has many benefits including 
building loyalty and encouraging people 
to remain in the public sector, ensuring 
that the Department will have excellent 
leadership in the future and building 
expertise and understanding of the best 
practice in leadership.

The Department’s Graduate Program 
leads the way in the public sector, giving 
graduates access to an attractive variety 
of career opportunities and benefits. Unlike 
some other programs the Department 
offers its graduates permanence with a 
12-month probation period.

Similarly the Department is at the forefront 
of the public sector with its Traineeship 
Program. Business trainees are employed 
for 12 months in the Department where 
they learn a range of office, business 
and administrative skills. On successful 
completion of the traineeship, trainees 
earn a nationally recognised qualification.

The School Based Traineeship Program 
provides Western Australian government 
school students with an opportunity to 
undertake employment-based training 
in the Department. The program is 
coordinated by the Public Sector 
Commission. Qualifications offered include 
Certificate II in Business, Certificate II in 
Information Technology, Certificates II, III 
or IV in Government.

The Department understands that work 
is only one part of employees’ lives and 
encourages a balanced lifestyle, combining 
work and family responsibilities.

Employees have access to a selection of 
benefits that support a work-life balance, 
including a wellness program.

Mental health is a key focus for the 
Department with staff encouraged to 
attend stress management seminars, build 
awareness about depression and mental 
illness and learn how to directly help 
others.

The program hosted a series of women’s 
and men’s health seminars throughout 
the year including actively promoting the  
“R U OK?” day in September.

The wellness program also works closely 
with the occupational safety and health 
team, first aid and grievance officers 
throughout the Department to ensure a 
commitment to the health and wellbeing of 
all employees.

The State Revenue Succession 
Management Program, focussed on 
critical roles within the business during 
2011-12. This involved staff nominating for 
development during the year to help them 
become more competitive for the filling of 
identified roles in the future.

A review was also commenced on future 
people capability requirements, with an 
emphasis on revamping technical training.

The age profile of State Revenue means 
that a number of experienced staff are 
likely to depart over the next five years. A 
challenge exists to develop and improve 
the technical skills of staff that are crucial 
to deliver services at the required standard 
into the future.
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In the Office of State Revenue, the second 
intake of the Revenue Future Leaders 
Program was successfully undertaken 
and invitations issued for a third and final 
intake.

The Government Procurement Leadership 
Program is designed to build staff 
capabilities. The program is tailored to the 
specific requirements of the Procurement 
business and is designed around six 
identified leadership abilities, with 
separate streams for senior managers 
and for emerging managers. The 2011-12 
financial year saw the inaugural launch 
of both streams, with 19 staff enrolled in 
stream one and 20 staff enrolled in stream 
two.

The Procurement Vocational Program, 
launched in August 2011, provides a 
post graduate qualification to public 
sector employees including Department 
of Finance staff through its established 
Springboard educational scholarship 
program.

The potential of e-learning for both staff and 
stakeholders continued to be exploited. 
An e-learning tool is being developed that 
will tutor all procurement officers in WA 
Government purchasing rules, policies, 
guidelines processes and their use.

The Decommissioning Office continued 
to invest in employees to assist them in 
their future careers. Change management 
activities for staff in the Shared Service 
Centre included people strategy planning, 
managing change workshops, career 
progression workshops and up-skilling 
and cross-skilling.

The Department also worked with 
agencies to match employee preference 
nominations and deliver targeted job 
opportunities for Shared Services’ staff.

We invest in our people’s 

development so they have 

the capabilities and tools, 

as	well	as	the	confidence	to	

deliver and be accountable 

Corporate Services’ staff assisted over 100 employees to participate in leadership and management programs
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The establishment of the Strategic 
Directions document for the Department of 
Finance in 2012 provides a broad outline 
of the way forward for the Department. 

Building Management and Works

Reducing the cost of government office 
accommodation is a priority for the unit. This 
is expected to come from the consolidation 
of accommodation into fewer buildings, 
reduction in the size of the average work 
point from 19 to 15 square metres and 
decentralisation from the central business 
district to metropolitan activity centres.

Work has already commenced on the 
significant task of developing business 
cases for the next phase of office 
accommodation master planning. 

Continuing to deliver a large program of 
works, particularly for the Departments 
of Health and Education.  Major projects 
include the Perth Rectangular Stadium, 
now in delivery phase. Significant programs 
of work funded through Royalties for 
Regions and Commonwealth initiatives,  
are also expected to commence delivery 
phase, totalling some $750 million over the 
next three years.    

Outlook for the future Government Procurement

In 2012-13, the Department will continue 
to implement the Delivering Community 
Services in Partnership policy. 

As part of the sustainable funding and 
contracting with the not-for-profit sector 
initiative, education and support is being 
provided to government agencies and the 
not-for-profit sector.

The demand for procurement education, 
training and awareness raising continues 
to escalate and Government Procurement 
will further develop and deliver its programs 
across the State.

Government Procurement will also 
continue to assist agencies to achieve 
a reduction of the Government’s 11,000 
strong vehicle fleet by 10 per cent through 
2012-13, as well as to implement Cabinet 
decisions on future fleet savings measures.

Shared Services

The decommissioning of Shared Services 
and the return of corporate services to 
agencies will be at its height in 2012-13.

It is planned that agencies will progressively 
transition from the current operating 
environment to new arrangements with 
the last agency transition due to occur in 
December 2013.

The Shared Service Centre will operate 
until the last agency has completed its 
transition. This will require balancing the 
need to maintain services with the need to
support staff in moving to new positions in 
other agencies.

State Revenue

Efforts will continue to improve services for 
customers in revenue and grants, and to 
simplify procedures while maintaining the 
integrity of the State’s Revenue systems.

In 2012-13, there will be a broader range 
of payment options and better email 
communication between State Revenue 
and their customers.

In addition, systems and processes will 
be put in place to deliver new pay-roll tax 
rebates and an exemption announced in 
the 2012-13 State Budget.

Emerging technologies and social media 
present further opportunities for State 
Revenue to better engage and interact 
with their customers.
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Public Utilities Office

2012-13 will be the first full year of the 
Public Utilities Office as a part of the 
Department of Finance.

The Office has commenced a realignment 
of its organisational structure to improve 
its ability to respond to challenges 
facing the energy sector, particularly 
rising costs of energy service delivery 
and the consequences of increases in 
energy prices faced by businesses and 
households. 

The Office will have an expanded capacity 
to advise on the performance of the 
government electricity businesses, while 
maintaining and improving its capabilities 
in policy advice to government and in 
management of programs that promote 
energy efficiency and address consumer 
affordability of energy services.

A  particular  focus  of  the  Office in 
the coming year will be investigation of 
opportunities for cost reduction in the supply 
chain for energy services, considering 
both the activities and operation of the 
government energy businesses, as well as 
the broader institutional and administrative 
frameworks of energy markets.

Corporate Services

Work on the re-integration of financial 
and human resource services, previously 
provided by the Shared Service Centre, 
will continue through 2012-13.

The intranet modernisation project 
will deliver a fresh new interface for 
departmental staff to facilitate knowledge 
sharing and improve communications 
across the business.

ICT will complete the planning and 
design for a departmental secondary 
data centre. This will provide the facility 
and infrastructure to enable restoration of 
business technology systems.

People Strategy and Performance will 
lead the development of a new leadership 
development program to 
ensure our people are 
able to perform at their 
best and fulfil their 
career aspirations.

We are committed to providing 

high quality work which delivers 

value and  achieves better 

outcomes for our customers

State Revenue continues to simplify procedures and improve services for customers in revenue and grants 
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Significant Issues Affecting 
the Agency 

As may be expected, practical issues 
around establishing offices and systems, 
and developing strategic directions, 
dominated the Department of Finance’s 
first year of operation.

The external factors most affecting the 
work of the business units were primarily 
economic, particularly the impact of strong 
growth and continued global uncertainty. 
As a consequence both business growth 
and the property market stayed relatively 
flat, which affected several of the business 
units.

For example:
• Decreased demand for first home owner 

grants and lower than expected duties 
transaction levels

• Ongoing growth in the primary resources 
sector adversely affected the availability 
of office space in the central business 
district, which affected government 
office accommodation costs

• Strength in the mining sector and related 
industries drove solid growth in the  
pay-roll tax base and demand for 
associated services

Each of the business units in the 
Department faced its own set of challenges 
and goals through the year.

Building Management and Works
Ensuring value for money office 
accommodation to support government 
service delivery in an environment of limited 
supply and high demand. Implementation 
of the Government Office Accommodation 
Master Plan is helping to manage rising 
costs.

Government Procurement
The Government Procurement business 
encountered significant challenges to 
establish the Funding and Contracting 
Services Unit to meet government 
imperatives of the launch of the Delivering 
Community Services in Partnership Policy.  

The challenges included:
• Recruitment of staff

• Establishing and developing the 
frameworks

• Promoting the role of the unit across 
government

• Engaging with the community sector

Western Australia has a number of major 
government construction projects under 
way or in planning, including the Fiona 
Stanley Hospital, Perth Arena, the new 
Children’s Hospital and the Perth Major 
Stadium. The Department continues to 
assist agencies with such high-risk, high 
profile projects to ensure good contract 
management and procurement practices 
are in place.

Shared Services
Work on the decommissioning of Shared 
Services began on 1 January 2012, and 
the first function, Human Resources 
Services (including recruitment), was 
decommissioned in 2011–12.

Planning for ongoing decommissioning 
included logistical requirements around 
the transfer of facilities and employees 
responsible for each function to agencies 
as they assume responsibility for those 
services.
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State Revenue
The level of activity in the Western 
Australian economy has a direct impact 
on the demand for revenue collection and 
grant services provided by the Department. 
Issues that required attention during  
2011-12 included the ongoing need to 
reduce compliance costs for business in 
part through better use of technology, the 
effect of lower market activity in property 
on duties transaction levels, and solid 
growth in the pay-roll tax base.

Public Utilities Office
On 1 April 2012, the Public Utilities Office 
assumed responsibility for a number of 
significant energy issues. These include 
improvements to the management and 
mitigation of gas and liquid fuel supply 
disruptions in Western Australia.

Rising electricity prices continue to be a 
burden on some households on low or 
fixed incomes across the State.

In 2012-13, the Public Utilities Office will 
address this through the investigation of 
opportunities to minimise cost pressures. 
This includes overseeing the electricity 
corporations and their cost structures as 
well as ensuring the market settings and 
the regulatory frameworks are efficient and 
not adding unnecessary costs onto market 
participants, that are ultimately passed 
onto consumers.

The Department is involved in the 
development of policies and programs 
that deliver targeted relief to consumers. 
During 2011-12 a significant increase in 
the installation of small renewable energy 
systems by households, driven by the 
Renewable Energy Target and the price of 
carbon established by the Commonwealth 
Government, also required focus.

Corporate Services
Corporate Services was deeply involved in 
two major Finance initiatives in 2011-12, 
the decommissioning of Shared Services, 
and the establishment of the Public Utilities 
Office. These challenges, as well as the 
logistical efforts required for establishing 
corporate services within the Department 
of Finance, were the most significant 
issues facing the business this year.

The Department’s emphasis is 

on growing and developing our 

capacity to meet Government’s 

constant demand for better 

information and timely, reliable 

and innovative advice

Building Management and Works ensures timely delivery of projects while managing industry expectations
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance
Financial Statements

Independent Audit Opinion

Certification of Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2012

The accompanying financial statements 
of the Department of Finance have been 
prepared in compliance with the provisions 
of the Financial Management Act 2006 
from proper accounts and records to 
present fairly the financial transactions for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2012 and 
the financial position as at 30 June 2012.

At the date of signing we are not aware 
of any circumstances which would render 
the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Roy Picardo       Anne Nolan
Acting Chief        Director General 
Finance Officer     11 September 2012
11 September 2012
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Independent Audit Opinion
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Statement of Comprehensive Income Note 2012

For the year ended 30 June 2012 $000
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 7  135,411 
Supplies and services 8  1,336,759 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9  129,236 
Finance costs 10  8,685 
Accommodation expenses 11  42,123 
Grants and subsidies 12  2,198 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 15  4 
Other expenses 13  8,858 
Total cost of services  1,663,274 
Income
Revenue 14
User charges and fees  1,406,422 
Commonwealth grants and contributions  1,610 
Interest revenue  809 
Other revenue  4,442 
Total Revenue  1,413,281 
Gains 15
Gain on disposal of non-current assets  11,524 
Total Gains  11,524 
Total income other than income from State Government  1,424,806 
NET COST OF SERVICES  (238,468)
Income from State Government 16
Service appropriation  266,137 
Resources received free of charge  11,727 
Royalties for Regions Fund  160 
Total income from State Government  278,023 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD  39,555 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in the revaluation surplus 31  2,938 

Total other comprehensive income  2,938 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  42,493 
Refer also to the ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Financial Position Note 2012
As at 30 June 2012 $000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17  196,876 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 18  4,790 
Receivables 19  210,069 
Finance lease receivables 20  989 
Inventories 21  67 
Amounts receivable for services 22  1,466 
Other current assets 23  19,938 
Total Current Assets  434,196 
Non‑Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 18  3,770 
Receivables 19  45 
Finance lease receivables 20  3,551 
Amounts receivable for services 22  149,510 
Property, plant, equipment and vehicles 24  802,820 
Intangible assets 25  137,057 
Total Non‑Current Assets  1,096,753 
TOTAL ASSETS  1,530,949 
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 27  319,781 
Borrowings 28  59,854 
Provisions 29  35,416 
Total Current Liabilities  415,051 
Non‑Current Liabilities
Borrowings 28  87,723 
Provisions 29  8,234 
Lease incentive 30  36,699 
Total Non‑Current Liabilities  132,656 
Total Liabilities  547,707 
NET ASSETS  983,242 
EQUITY 31
Contributed equity  940,749 
Reserves  2,938 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  39,555 

TOTAL EQUITY  983,242 

Refer also to the ‘Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service’. The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity Note Contributed 
equity Reserves

Accumulated 
surplus 
(deficit)

Total equity

For the year ended 30 June 2012 31 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2011  ‑  ‑  ‑  ‑ 

Surplus/(deficit)  -  - 39,555 39,555

Other comprehensive income  - 2,938  - 2,938

Total comprehensive income for the period  -  2,938  39,555  42,493 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Capital appropriations 93,906  -  - 93,906

Other contributions by owners:

Office of Energy 9,460  -  - 9,460

Department of Health (Sunset Hospital) 9,435  -  - 9,435

Department of Treasury (a) 831,427  -  - 831,427

Distributions to owners (3,480)  -  - (3,480)

Total 940,748  -  - 940,748

Balance at 30 June 2012 940,748 2,938 39,555 983,242

(a)  The amount initially transferred from Treasury ($846.12 million) was adjusted by $14.694 million to take into account land previously incorrectly recognised.

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows Note 2012
For the year ended 30 June 2012 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation 224,909
Capital appropriations 93,906
Holding account drawdowns 5,548
Receipts from Treasurer’s Advance 20,000
Payments to Treasurer’s Advance (20,000)
Royalties for Regions Fund 160
Net cash provided by State Government  324,522 
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits  (130,311) 
Supplies and services  (1,371,246) 
Finance costs (8,809) 
Accommodation  (15,225) 
Grants and subsidies  (2,198) 
GST payments on purchases  (131,729) 
GST payments to taxation authority  (4,419) 
Other payments  (7,293) 
Receipts
User charges and fees  1,474,933 
Commonwealth grants and contributions  1,610 
Interest received  832 
GST receipts on sales  125,702 
GST receipts from taxation authority  11,719 
Other receipts  5,152 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 32  (51,282)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (174,554)
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 11,524
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (163,030)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Repayment of borrowings (48,128)
Receipts
Proceeds from borrowings  5,903 
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities  (42,225)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  67,986 
Cash balance transferred in from Department of Treasury 126,922
Cash balance transferred in from Office of Energy 10,528
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 32 205,436
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
For the year ended 30 June 2012

State 
Fleet 

Service

Revenue 
Assessment 

and 
Collection

Grants and 
Subsidies 

Administration

Facilitate the 
Development 

and 
Management of 

Agency Specific 
Contracts

Development 
and Management 

of Whole‑of‑
Government 

Common 
Use Contract 

Arrangements

Project 
Management, 

Decommissioning 
of the Whole‑

of‑Government 
Shared Corporate 
Services Reform

Provision 
of Financial 
and Human 
Resources 

Services

Services to 
Government

Service 1 Service 2 Service 3 Service 4 Service 5 Service 6 Service 7 Service 8
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 734 20,398 2,196 25,973 7,588 3,178 29,396 3,346
Supplies and services 398 14,258 1,535 2,578 5,589 3,118 28,842 2,219
Depreciation and amortisation expense 69,113 460 49 792 250 4,171 38,579 260
Finance costs 8,685 - - - - - - -
Accommodation expenses - 2,337 252 2,028 630 364 3,370 2,690
Grants and subsidies - - - - - - - -
Loss on disposal of non-current assets - 1 - 1 - - 1 1
Other expenses 21 87 10 675 214 360 3,329 25
Total cost of services 78,951 37,541 4,042 32,047 14,271 11,191 103,517 8,541
Income 
User charges and fees 89,184 2,058 222 4,079 1,266 - 19,399 -
Commonwealth grants and contributions - 116 12 16 5 - 18 12
Interest revenue 803 - - - - - 6 -
Other revenue (54) 249 27 733 231 - 1,365 17
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 11,524 - - - - - - -
Total income other than income from 
State Government  101,457  2,423  261  4,828  1,502  -  20,788  29 

NET COST OF SERVICES  (22,506)  35,118  3,781  27,219  12,769  11,191  82,729  8,512 
Income from State Government
Service appropriation 935 34,748 3,741 26,933 12,635 11,046 81,886 8,422
Resources received free of charge - 10,294 1,108 - - - - -
Royalties for Regions Fund - - - - - - - -
Total income from State Government 935 45,042 4,849 26,933 12,635 11,046 81,886 8,422
Surplus/(deficit) for the period  23,441  9,924  1,068  (286)  (134)  (145)  (843)  (90)
The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Leads the 
Planning 

and Delivery 
of New 

Government 
Buildings

Leads the 
Planning and 

Delivery of 
Government 

Building 
Maintenance

Leads the Planning 
and Delivery of 

Government Office 
Accommodation

Development and 
Implementation of 
Energy Policy and 

Programs
Total

Service 9 Service 10 Service 11 Service 12
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 25,166 7,045 8,195 2,196 135,411
Supplies and services 792,929 221,986 258,200 5,107 1,336,759
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,691 2,713 3,156 2 129,236
Finance costs - - - - 8,685
Accommodation expenses 18,866 5,281 6,143 162 42,123
Grants and subsidies 123 34 40 2,001 2,198
Loss on disposal of non-current assets - - - - 4
Other expenses 2,575 722 840 - 8,858
Total cost of services 849,350 237,781 276,574 9,468 1,663,274
Income 
User charges and fees 836,291 213,110 240,813 - 1,406,422
Commonwealth grants and contributions 742 188 213 288 1,610
Interest revenue - - - - 809
Other revenue 1,145 292 330 107 4,442
Gain on disposal of non-current assets - - - - 11,524
Total income other than income from State Government  838,178  213,590  241,356  395  1,424,807 
NET COST OF SERVICES  11,172  24,191  35,218  9,073  238,467
Income from State Government
Service appropriation 49,789 12,688 14,337 8,977 266,137
Resources received free of charge 179 46 51 49 11,727
Royalties for Regions Fund 160 - - - 160
Total income from State Government 50,128 12,734 14,388 9,026 278,023
Surplus/(deficit) for the period  38,956  (11,457)  (20,830)  (47)  39,555 
The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service 
As at 30 June 2012

State Fleet 
Service

Revenue 
Assessment 

and Collection

Grants and 
Subsidies 

Administration

Facilitate the 
Development 

and Management 
of Agency 

Specific 
Contracts

Development 
and 

Management 
of Whole‑of‑
Government 

Common 
Use Contract 

Arrangements

Project 
Management, 

Decommissioning 
of the Whole‑

of‑Government 
Shared Corporate 
Services Reform

Provision 
of Financial 
and Human 
Resources 

Services

Services to 
Government

Service 1 Service 2 Service 3 Service 4 Service 5 Service 6 Service 7 Service 8
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets
Current assets 14,326 26,808 2,886 32,245 10,295 5,230 48,352 31,356
Non-current assets 272,094 27,235 2,932 18,690 5,981 13,890 128,427 18,433
Total assets 286,420 54,043 5,818 50,935 16,276 19,120 176,779 49,789

Liabilities
Current liabilities 71,154 8,024 864 12,317 3,941 2,085 19,277 5,291
Non-current liabilities 87,802 1,073 116 1,095 350 243 2,248 111
Total liabilities 158,956 9,097 980 13,412 4,291 2,328 21,525 5,402

NET ASSETS 127,464 44,946 4,838 37,523 11,985 16,792 155,254 44,387

Leads the 
Planning and 

Delivery of New 
Government 

Buildings

Leads the 
Planning and 

Delivery of 
Government 

Building 
Maintenance

Leads the 
Planning and 

Delivery of 
Government 

Office 
Accommodation

Development 
and 

Implementation 
of Energy Policy 

and Programs

Total

Service 9 Service 10 Service 11 Service 12
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets
Current assets 156,123 45,326 50,362 10,887 434,196
Non-current assets 373,930 108,561 120,623 5,957 1,096,753
Total assets 530,053 153,887 170,985 16,844 1,530,949

Liabilities
Current liabilities 175,518 50,957 56,619 9,004 415,051
Non-current liabilities 24,218 7,031 7,812 557 132,656
Total liabilities 199,736 57,988 64,431 9,561 547,707

NET ASSETS 330,317 95,899 106,554 7,283 983,242
The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates  
For the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
CONTROLLED TRANSACTIONS
Delivery services
Item 63 Net amount appropriated to deliver services 183,081 183,081  - 
Section 25 transfers and other adjustments (Note 41) - 82,000 82,000
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes
- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 987 1,056  69 
Total appropriations provided to deliver services 184,068 266,137 82,069 
Capital
Item 136 Capital appropriations  144,068  93,906  (50,162)
Total capital appropriations provided to deliver services 144,068 93,906  (50,162)

ADMINISTERED TRANSACTIONS
Item 64 Amount provided for Administered Grants, Subsidies and Other Transfer Payments  137,644  117,692  (19,952)
Amount authorised by other statutes
First Home Owner Grant Act 2000  126,360  105,782  (20,578)
Total Administered Transactions 264,004 223,474  (40,530)
GRAND TOTAL  592,140  583,517  (8,623)

Details of Expenses by Service 
State Fleet Service  93,164  78,951  (14,213)
Revenue Assessment and Collection  40,461  37,541  (2,920)
Grants and Subsidies Administration  3,923  4,042  119 
Facilitate the Development and Management of Agency Specific Contracts  32,506  32,047  (459)
Development and Management of Whole-of-Government Common Use Contract Arrangements  10,987  14,271  3,284 
Project Management, Decommissioning of the Whole-of-Government Shared Corporate Services Reform  6,825  11,191  4,366 
Provision of Financial and Payroll Services  88,825  103,517  14,692 
Services to Government  9,225  8,541  (684)
Leads the Planning and Delivery of New Government Buildings  787,362  849,350  61,988 
Leads the Planning and Delivery of Government Building Maintenance  203,446  237,781  34,335 
Leads the Planning and Delivery of Government Office Accommodation  299,858  276,574  (23,284)
Development and Implementation of Energy Policy and Programs  20,620  9,468  (11,152)
Total Details of Expenses by Service  1,597,202  1,663,274  66,072 
Less Total Income  1,352,612  1,424,807  72,195 
Net Cost of Services  244,590  238,467  (6,123)
Adjustments  (60,522)  27,670  88,192 
Total appropriations provided to deliver services 184,068 266,137  82,069 
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Details of Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical assets  309,272  175,066  (134,206)
Repayment of borrowings  -  48,128  48,128 
Adjustments for other funding sources  (165,204)  (129,288)  35,916 
Capital appropriations 144,068 93,906  (50,162)

DETAILS OF ADMINISTERED INCOME ESTIMATES
Taxation
Insurance Duty 466,900 487,141  20,241 
Land Tax 547,000 550,873  3,873 
Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax 83,600 84,183  583 
Pay-roll Tax 2,920,100 3,087,749  167,649 
Racing and Wagering Western Australia Tax 34,406 35,844  1,438 
Transfer Duty 1,344,600 1,260,561  (84,039)
Landholder Duty 48,800 101,388  52,588 
Vehicle Licence Duty 364,900 367,181  2,281 
Other Duties 10 9  (1)
Commonwealth Mirror Taxes 33,910 38,127  4,217 
Total Taxation 5,844,226 6,013,056  168,830 

Other revenue
Office lease rental revenue 31,000 31,849  849 
Other revenue 35,561 38,198  2,637 
Total Revenue 66,561 70,047  3,486 

Appropriations
First Home Owner Grant Act 2000 126,360 105,782  (20,578)
Administered Grants and Transfer Payments 137,644 117,693  (19,951)
Total Appropriations 264,004 223,475  (40,529)
TOTAL INCOME ESTIMATES 6,174,791 6,306,578 131,787
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Note 1. Australian 
Accounting Standards
 
General  

The Department’s financial statements for the 
year ended 30 June 2012 have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. 
The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ refers 
to Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).  

The Department has adopted any applicable, 
new and revised Australian Accounting 
Standards from their operative dates.  

Early adoption of standards 

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian 
Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted 
by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements.  There has 
been no early adoption of Australian Accounting 
Standards that have been issued or amended 
(but not operative) by the Department for the 
annual reporting period ended 30 June 2012. 

Note 2. Summary of significant 
accounting policies 

(a) General statement
The Department  is a not-for-profit reporting entity 
that prepares general purpose financial statements 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, 
the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as 
applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions 
to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions 
governing the preparation of financial statements 
and take precedence over Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.  

Where modification is required and has had a 
material or significant financial effect upon the 
reported results, details of that modification 
and the resulting financial effect are disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared 
on the accrual basis of accounting using the 
historical cost convention, except for land and 
buildings which have been measured at fair value.  
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements have been consistently 
applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian 
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars ($000).

Note 4 ‘Judgements made by management in 
applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements 
that have been made in the process of applying the 
Department’s accounting policies resulting in the 
most significant effect on amounts recognised in 
the financial statements. 

Note 5 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ 
discloses key assumptions made concerning 
the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity is the Department of Finance 
which was established and designated effective 
from 1 July 2011, following the separation of the 
Department of Treasury and Finance into the 
Department of Treasury and the Department of 
Finance. On 1 April 2012, the new Public Utilities 
Office was established within the Department with 
a transfer of assets, liabilities and employees from 
the former Office of Energy.

Mission 

The Department of Finance is a new department 
with a vision of providing quality advice and services 
to facilitate the achievement of government’s 
objectives which will benefit Western Australians 
now and into the future.

The Department is predominantly funded by 
Parliamentary appropriation supplemented by fees 
and charges received for the provision of services 
to other agencies that are charged out on a full cost 
recovery basis. 

The financial statements encompass all funds 
through which the Department controls resources 
to carry out its functions.

In the process of reporting on the Department 
as a single entity, all intra-entity transactions and 
balances have been eliminated.

The Insurance Commission of Western Australia 
has been appointed to administer the RiskCover 
Managed Fund on behalf of government under 
the supervision of the Department.  Details of 
the transactions of the RiskCover Managed Fund 
are disclosed in the financial statements of the 
Commission.
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Services

The Department provides the following services:

Service 1: State Fleet Service

The financing and leasing of some 11,000 
passenger and light commercial vehicles to State 
Government agencies and the management of 
government vehicle fleet policy.

Service 2: Revenue Assessment and Collection

The assessment and collection of a range of 
statutory-based revenue, including duties, land 
tax and pay-roll tax, and those that are collected 
on behalf of other agencies (e.g. Perth Parking 
Licence fees on behalf of Department of Transport) 
or other jurisdictions (e.g. collection of a range of 
taxes for the Commonwealth in the Indian Ocean 
Territories).

Service 3: Grants and Subsidies Administration

The assessment and payment of a range 
of grants and subsidies under both 
statutory and administrative schemes.  
The major payments relate to the First Home Owner 
Grant scheme and concessions on water and local 
government rates and the emergency services levy 
for pensioners and seniors.

Service 4: Facilitate the Development and 
Management	of	Agency	Specific	Contracts

Government agencies assisted in effectively 
managing procurement risks and establishing 
contracts that deliver value-for-money and 
efficiently meet their operational needs.

Service 5: Development and Management of 
Whole-of-Government Common Use Contract 
Arrangements

The Department provides a whole-of-government 
approach to procurement that efficiently meets the 
business needs of government agencies, manages 
risk and delivers value for money.

Service 6: Project Management, Decommissioning 
of the Whole-of-Government Shared Corporate 
Services Reform

Following the Government’s decision to 
decommission the Office of Shared Services, a 
Decommissioning Office has been established 
to undertake the program and to assist client 
government agencies to roll-out from the Shared 
Services environment.  It is planned all agencies 
will have exited Shared Services by December 
2013.

Service 7: Provision of Financial and Payroll 
Services

The Shared Services Centre is currently responsible 
for providing financial and payroll services to 
agencies that are currently rolled into Shared 
Services.  Responsibility will continue until the last 
agency exits Shared Services in December 2013.

Service 8: Services to Government

Corporate services directly provided by the 
Department to support the outcomes and activities 
of the Department of Treasury.

Service 9: Leads the Planning and Delivery of New 
Government Buildings

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the 
planning, project management and procurement of 
new non-residential buildings.

Service 10: Leads the Planning and Delivery of 
Government Building Maintenance

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the 
planning, project management and procurement of 
maintenance for non-residential buildings.

Service 11: Leads the Planning and Delivery of 
Government	Office	Accommodation

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the 
planning, project management and procurement of 
government office accommodation.

Service 12: Development and Implementation of 
Energy Policy and Programs

The delivery of energy policy and programs that 
enable the Public Utilities Office to perform its 
role as a change agent leading development and 
implementation of policy to meet the State’s energy 
needs.

The Department administers assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses on behalf of Government 
which are not controlled by, nor integral to the 
function of the Department.  These administered 
balances and transactions are not recognised in 
the principal financial statements of the Department 
but schedules are prepared using the same basis 
as the financial statements and are presented at 
note 46 ‘Administered income and expenses’ and 
note 48 ‘Administered assets and liabilities’.

(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by 
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector 
Entities requires transfers, in the nature of equity 
contributions, other than as a result of a restructure 
of administrative arrangements, to be designated 
by the Government (the owner) as contributions 
by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) 
before such transfers can be recognised as equity 
contributions.  Capital appropriations have been 
designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 
Contributions by Owners made to Wholly-Owned 
Public Sector Entities and have been credited 
directly to Contributed equity.  

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, 
other than as a result of a restructure of 
administrative arrangements, is designated as 
contributions by owners where the transfers are 
non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
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(e) Income
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair 
value of consideration received or receivable.  
Revenue is recognised for the major business 
activities as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and 
disposal of other assets when the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser 
and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to 
the client or by reference to the stage of completion 
of the transaction.

Vehicle Fleet Lease Rentals

Rental revenue is recognised in accordance 
with lease agreements entered into with State 
Government agencies, statutory authorities and 
other State Government entities.

Vehicle Bailment Revenues

Revenue is recognised on receipt of sale proceeds 
of vehicles held under Bailment Rights.

Interest

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

Revenue Recognition - Administered

Revenues resulting from taxation, territorial 
revenue, regulatory fees and fines, sale of goods 
and services, rent and interest are, where possible, 
recognised when the transaction or event giving 
rise to the revenue occurs.  In some instances 
however, the revenue is not measurable until the 
cash is received.

Service Appropriations

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues 
in the period in which the Department gains control 
of the appropriated funds.  The Department gains 
control of appropriated funds at the time those 
funds are deposited into the Department’s bank 
account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for 
services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.

Net Appropriation Determination

The Treasurer may make a determination providing 
for prescribed receipts to be retained for services 
under the control of the Department. In accordance 
with the determination specified in the 2011-2012 
Budget Statements, the Department retained 
$1,425 million in 2012 from the following:

• proceeds from fees, charges and sale of goods
• Commonwealth specific purpose grants and 

contributions
• one-off gains with a value of less than $10,000 

derived from the sale of property other than 
real property

• rental revenue recognised in accordance with 
lease agreements entered into with State 
Government agencies, statutory authorities 
and other State Government entities and 
vehicle bailment revenue held under bailment 
rights

• provision of contract services and rental 
income sufficient to cover outgoings paid for 
government owned buildings

• interest and other departmental revenue

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal 
contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the 
Department obtains control over the assets 
comprising the contributions, usually when cash is 
received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not 
contributions by owners are recognised at their fair 
value.  Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and 
the services would be purchased if not donated. 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as 
revenue at fair value in the period in which the 
Department obtains control over the funds. The 
Department obtains control of the funds at the time 
the funds are deposited into the Department’s bank 
account.  

Gains

Gains may be realised or unrealised and are 
usually recognised on a net basis.  These include 
gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets 
and some revaluations of non-current assets.

(f) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

(g) Property, plant, equipment and vehicles

Capitalisation/expensing of assets

Items of property, plant and equipment and motor 
vehicles costing $5,000 or more are recognised as 
assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed 
(depreciated) over their useful lives.  Items of 
property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 
and motor vehicles costing less than $5,000 are 
immediately expensed direct to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income (other than where they 
form part of a group of similar items which are 
significant	in	total).
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Initial recognition and measurement

Property, plant, equipment and motor vehicles are 
initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment and 
motor vehicles acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the 
revaluation model is used for the measurement 
of land, buildings and infrastructure and historical 
cost for all other property, plant and equipment. 
Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried at 
fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings 
and infrastructure only) and accumulated 
impairment losses. All other items of property, 
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair 
value of land and buildings is determined on the 
basis of current market buying values determined 
by reference to recent market transactions. When 
buildings are revalued by reference to recent 
market transactions, the accumulated depreciation 
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount 
of the asset and the net amount restated to the 
revalued amount.

In the absence of market-based evidence, the 
fair value of land and buildings is determined on 
the basis of existing use. This normally applies 
where buildings are specialised or where land use 
is restricted.  Fair value for existing use assets is 
determined by reference to the cost of replacing 
the remaining future economic benefits embodied 
in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  
Where the fair value of buildings is determined on 
the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross 
carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation 
are restated proportionately. 

Land and buildings are independently valued 
annually by the Western Australian Land Information 
Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised with 
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying 
amount does not differ materially from the asset’s 
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair 
value are made in assessing whether to apply the 
existing use basis to assets and in determining 
estimated useful life.  Professional judgement by 
the valuer is required where the evidence does not 
provide a clear distinction between market type 
assets and existing use assets.

Derecognition

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, any revaluation 
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus.

Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation of 
non-current assets as described under ‘Property, 
plant and equipment’.

Depreciation

All non-current assets having a limited useful 
life are systematically depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of their future economic benefits.  
State Fleet motor vehicles are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis taking account of residual values 
and terms of the vehicle leases. Lease terms 
generally range from six months to five years.

Land is not depreciated. 

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using 
the straight line method, using rates which are 
reviewed annually.  

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable 
asset are:

Buildings  10 to 40 years
Heritage assets  100 years
Plant and equipment 10 to 15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Software(a)  3 to 5 years
Office fit-outs  3 to 15 years 
   or remaining lease term,  
   whichever is lower
Motor vehicles  6 months to 5 years

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related 
hardware. Shared Services Oracle Software will be 
amortised over the decommissioning period commencing 
1 January 2012 to 30 June 2014.

(h) Intangible assets
Capitalisation/expensing of assets

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more and internally generated intangible assets 
costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost 
of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) 
over their useful life.  Costs incurred below these 
thresholds are immediately expensed directly to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, 
the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent 
measurement requiring the asset to be carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful 
lives is calculated for the period of the expected 
benefit (estimated useful life) on the straight line 
basis using rates which are reviewed annually. All 
intangible assets controlled by the Department 
have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
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The expected useful lives for each class of 
intangible asset are:

Licences  up to 10 years
Research and  
Development Costs 3 to 5 years
Software(a)  3 to 13 years
Website costs  3 to 5 years

(a)  Software that is not integral to the operation of any 
related hardware

Licences

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software

Software that is an integral part of the related 
hardware is treated as property, plant and 
equipment.  Software that is not an integral part 
of the related hardware is treated as an intangible 
asset.  Software costing less than $5,000 is 
expensed in the year of acquisition.

Website costs

OnlineWA is the Internet single doorway to Western 
Australian information and services.  The cost of 
developing the features and content of OnlineWA 
has been capitalised as an intangible asset.  This 
asset will be amortised on a straight line basis over 
its estimated useful life (10 years).

Website costs are charged as expenses when 
they are incurred unless they relate to the 
acquisition or development of an asset when they 
may be capitalised and amortised.  Generally, 
costs in relation to feasibility studies during the 
planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs 
of maintenance during the operating phase are 
expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing 
a website, to the extent that they represent 
probable future economic benefits that can be 
reliably measured, are capitalised. Costs less than 
$5,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition.

(i) Impairment of assets
Items of property, plant, equipment, motor vehicles 
and intangible assets are tested for any indication 
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  
Where there is an indication of impairment, the 
recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to the recoverable amount and an 
impairment loss is recognised.  As the Department 
is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been 
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to 
circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement 
cost is falling or where there is a significant change 
in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is 
reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated 
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of 
consumption or expiration of asset’s future 
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment 
risk from falling replacement costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at the end of each reporting period 
irrespective of whether there is any indication of 
impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as 
surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs 
to sell and the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus 
assets carried at fair value have no risk of material 
impairment where fair value is determined by 
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair 
value is determined by reference to depreciated 
replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk 
of impairment and the recoverable amount is 
measured.  Surplus assets at cost are tested 
for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.

(j) Non‑current assets (or disposal 
groups) classified as held for sale
The Department does not control non-current 
assets held for sale.

(k) Leases 
Finance lease rights and obligations are initially 
recognised, at the commencement of the lease 
term, as assets and liabilities equal in amount to 
the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, 
determined at the inception of the lease.  The 
assets are disclosed as plant, equipment and 
vehicles under lease, and are depreciated over the 
period during which the Department is expected to 
benefit from their use.  Minimum lease payments 
are apportioned between the finance charge and 
the reduction of the outstanding lease liability, 
according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Department has entered into an operating 
lease arrangement for the rent of the office building 
where the lessor effectively retains the entire risks 
and benefits incidental to ownership of the items 
held under the operating lease. 

Lease income from operating leases where the 
Department is a lessor is recognised as income on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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(l) Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the Department has two 
categories of financial instruments:

• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial instruments have been disaggregated 
into the following classes:

Financial Assets

• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services

Financial Liabilities

• Payables
• WATC borrowings
• Finance lease liabilities
• Amounts due to the Treasurer

Initial recognition and measurement of financial 
instruments is at fair value which normally 
equates to the transaction cost or the face value.  
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and 
payables is the transaction cost or the face value 
because there is no interest rate applicable and 
subsequent measurement is not required as the 
effect of discounting is not material.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, 
cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and 
cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand 
and short-term deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to 
a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(n) Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries (refer to note 27 ‘Payables’) 
represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at 
the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are 
settled within a fortnight of the financial year end.  
The Department considers the carrying amount 
of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair 
value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (refer to 
note 18 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) 
consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense 
account over a period of 10 financial years to largely 
meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh 
year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 
26.  No interest is received on this account. 

(o) Amounts receivable for services  
     (holding account)
The Department receives funding on an accrual 
basis that recognises the full annual cash and 
non-cash cost of services.  The appropriations 
are paid partly in cash and partly as an asset 
(holding account receivable) that is accessible on 
the emergence of the cash funding requirement to 
cover leave entitlements and asset replacement.

(p) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the 
method most appropriate to each particular class 
of inventory, with the majority being valued on 
average cost method.

Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost 
unless they are no longer required, in which case 
they are valued at net realisable value.

(q) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at 
original invoice amount less an allowance for 
any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The 
collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing 
basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible 
are written-off against the allowance account.  The 
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) 
is raised when there is objective evidence that the 
Department will not be able to collect the debts. The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is 
due for settlement within 14 to 30 days.  

(r) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable 
when the Department becomes obliged to make 
future payments as a result of a purchase of assets 
or services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair 
value, as they are generally settled within 30 days.
  
(s) Borrowings
All loans payable are initially recognised at cost, 
being the fair value of the net proceeds received.  
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. 

(t) Amounts due to the Treasurer 
The amount due to the Treasurer is in respect 
of a Treasurer’s Advance. Initial recognition and 
measurement, and subsequent measurement, is at 
the amount repayable. Although there is no interest 
charged, the amount repayable is equivalent to fair 
value as the period of the borrowing is for less than 
12 months with the effect of discounting not being 
material. 
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(u) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or 
amount and are recognised where there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event and when the outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is probable and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period.  

Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions 
are in respect of employees’ services up to the end 
of the reporting period.

Annual leave

The liability for annual leave expected to be settled 
within 12 months after the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the undiscounted 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled.

Annual leave not expected to be settled within 12 
months after the reporting period is recognised 
and measured at the present value of amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled 
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at 
the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments 
consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as 
well as the experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. The expected future payments 
are discounted using market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on national government bonds 
with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The provision for annual leave is classified as a 
current liability as the Department does not have 
an unconditional right to the defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave expected to be 
settled within 12 months after the reporting period 
is recognised and measured at the undiscounted 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled.

Long service leave not expected to be settled within 
12 months after the reporting period is recognised 
and measured at the present value of amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled 
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at 
the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments 
consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as 
well as the experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. The expected future payments 
are discounted using market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on national government bonds 
with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are 
classified as current liabilities as the Department 
does not have unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting period. Conditional long service leave 
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 
because the Department has an unconditional 
right to defer the settlement of the liability until the 
employee has completed the requisite years of 
service.

Sick leave

Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is 
probable that sick leave paid in the future will be 
greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the 
future.

Past history indicates that on average, sick leave 
taken each reporting period is less than the 
entitlement accrued.  This is expected to continue 
in future periods.  Accordingly, it is unlikely that 
existing accumulated entitlements will be used 
by employees and no liability for unused sick 
leave entitlements is recognised.  As sick leave 
is non-vesting, an expense is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income for this leave 
as it is taken.

Deferred leave

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public 
Service employees who have entered into an 
agreement to self-fund an additional twelve months 
leave in the fifth year of the agreement.  The 
provision recognises the value of salary set aside 
for employees to be used in the fifth year.  This 
liability is measured on the same basis as annual 
leave.  Deferred leave is reported as a current 
provision as employees can leave the scheme at 
their discretion at any time.

Purchased leave

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public 
Service employees who have entered into an 
agreement to self-fund up to an additional ten weeks 
leave per calendar year.  The provision recognises 
the value of salary set aside for employees and is 
measured at the nominal amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled.  This liability is 
measured on the same basis as annual leave.

Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation 
Board (GESB) and other funds administer 
public sector superannuation arrangements in 
Western Australia in accordance with legislative 
requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in 
particular schemes for public sector employees 
varies according to commencement and 
implementation dates.
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Eligible employees contribute to the Pension 
Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed 
to new members since 1987, or the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit 
lump sum scheme closed to new members since 
1995. 

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the 
purposes of employees and whole-of-government 
reporting. However, it is a defined contribution 
plan for agency purposes because the concurrent 
contributions (defined contributions) made by the 
Department to GESB extinguishes the agency’s 
obligations to the related superannuation liability.

The Department has no liabilities under the Pension 
or the GSS.  The liabilities for the unfunded Pension 
Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits 
attributable to members who transferred from the 
Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.

 All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Department to the 
GESB.  The concurrently funded part of the GSS 
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme as these 
contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of 
the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.

Employees commencing employment prior to 
16 April 2007 who were not members of either 
the Pension Scheme or the GSS became 
non-contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees 
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 
became members of the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members 
of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became 
able to choose their preferred superannuation fund.  
The Department makes concurrent contributions 
to GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in 
compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) 
Act 1992.  

Contributions to these accumulation schemes 
extinguish the Department’s liability for 
superannuation charges in respect of employees 
who are not members of the Pension Scheme or 
GSS.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect 
of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped 
from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.

See also note 2(v) ‘Superannuation expense’.

Provisions – other

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ 
compensation insurance, are not employee benefits 
and are recognised separately as liabilities and 
expenses when the employment to which they relate 
has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as 
part of ‘other expenses’ and are not included as part 
of the Department’s ‘employee benefits expense’.  
The related liability is included in ‘employment on-
costs provision’. 

Restoration costs

A provision is recognised where the Department 
has a legal or constructive obligation to undertake 
restoration work.  Estimates are based on the 
present value of expected future cash outflows.

(v) Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income comprises employer 
contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent 
contributions), the WSS, the GESB, or other 
superannuation fund.  The employer contribution 
paid to the GESB in respect of the GSS is paid back 
into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.

(w) Resources received free of 
charge or for nominal cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal 
cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as 
income and as assets or expenses as appropriate, at 
fair value. Where the resource received represents a 
service that the Department would otherwise pay for, 
a corresponding expense is recognised. Receipts of 
assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position.

Assets or services received from other State 
Government agencies are separately disclosed 
under Income from State Government in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(x) Construction Work in Progress
Construction work in progress is stated at the 
aggregate of contract costs incurred to date plus 
recognised profits less recognised losses and 
progress billings. If there are contracts where 
progress billing exceeds the aggregate costs 
incurred plus profits less losses, the net amounts 
are presented under other payables. 

Contract costs include all costs directly related 
to specific contracts, costs that are specifically 
chargeable to the customer under the terms 
of the contract and an allocation of overhead 
expenses incurred in connection with the 
Department’s construction activities in general. 

(y) Lease incentives
In instances where the lessor has provided 
incentives for the Department to enter into an 
operating lease, the Department has recognised 
the aggregate benefit of incentives as a reduction 
of rental expense over the lease term, on a straight-
line basis. Examples of lease incentives include 
up-front cash payments or the reimbursement or 
assumption by the lessor of costs of the lease such 
as leasehold improvements.

(z) Right to receive
The asset recognised is the State Government’s 
right to receive the Perth Convention and Exhibition 
Centre in 35 years from when construction was 
completed in 2003-04. This value has been 
determined by depreciating the construction costs 
at two per cent per annum from completion date 
over 35 years, being the term of the lease.
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(aa) Residential Net Feed‑in Tariff Scheme
The Department provides advice on policy settings 
for the Residential Net Feed-in Tariff Scheme, 
which are established by the Government. The 
scheme is administered by the electricity retailers, 
Synergy and Horizon Power, based on a customer 
contract administered by the Public Utilities Office. 
Payments under the scheme are made by Synergy 
and Horizon Power. 

Note 3. Comparative figures

As this is the first reporting period for the 
Department of Finance, which was established and 
designated effective from 1 July 2011, there are no 
comparative figures to disclose. 

Note 4. Judgements made by 
management in applying accounting 
policies

The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgements about the 
application of accounting policies that have a 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.  The Department evaluates 
these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitments 

The Department has entered into a number 
of leases for buildings for branch office 
accommodation.  Some of these leases relate to 
buildings of a temporary nature and it has been 
determined that the lessor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.  
Accordingly, these leases have been classified as 
operating leases.

Note 5. Key sources of estimation 
uncertainty

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the 
future are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.

Waste disposal site

An environmental analysis to provide a quantifiable 
estimate of the amount required to rehabilitate 
the Mt Walton East intractable waste disposal 
site was obtained for the 2011-2012 financial 
year. Calculations performed in assessing the 
restoration costs provision incorporate a number 
of key estimates. The calculation of the provision 
will be conducted annually and adjusted using the 
most up to date information available.

Long service leave

Several estimations and assumptions used in 
calculating the Department’s long service leave 
provision include expected future salary rates, 
discount rates, employee retention rates and 
expected future payments. Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on 
the carrying amounts of the long service leave 
provision.
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Note 6. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

AASB 1054 Australian 
Additional Disclosures

This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence 
Project, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve convergence between 
Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards.  There is no financial impact.

AASB  
2009-12

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133, 137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and Int 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052].
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of  
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB  
2010-4

Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 1, 7, 101 & 134 and Int 13].
The amendments to AASB 7 clarify financial instrument disclosures in relation to credit risk.  The carrying amount of financial assets that would 
otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is no longer required to be disclosed.  There is no financial impact.

The amendments to AASB 101 clarify the presentation of the statement of changes in equity.  The disaggregation of other comprehensive income 
reconciling the carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period for each component of equity is no longer required.  There is no 
financial impact.

AASB  
2010-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and 
Int 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]. 

This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations.  There is no financial impact.

AASB  
2010-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets [AASB 1 & 7].
This Standard introduces additional disclosure relating to transfers of financial assets in AASB 7.  An entity shall disclose all transferred financial 
assets that are not derecognised and any continuing involvement in a transferred asset, existing at the reporting date, irrespective of when the 
related transfer transaction occurred.  There is no financial impact.

AASB  
2011-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project [AASB 1, 5, 101, 107, 108, 121, 128, 132 
& 134 and Int 2, 112 & 113].
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 1054, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single 
Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards.  There is no financial impact.

AASB  
2011-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate Consolidation 
[AASB 127, 128 & 131]. 
This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement for the 
consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity to be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent entity, 
investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity are not-for-profit non-reporting entities that comply with Australian Accounting 
Standards.  There is no financial impact.
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Voluntary changes in accounting policy 

There are no voluntary changes in accounting policies during the year.
                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements.  Consequently the Department has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may 
impact the Department.  Where applicable, the Department plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.

Operative for 
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB 9

Financial Instruments
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to 
accounting treatments.
The Standard was reissued in December 2010.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of 
the Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements
This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation 
– Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 11

Joint Arrangements
This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard

1 Jan 2013

AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
The Standard was issued in August 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 13
Fair Value Measurement
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value 
measurements.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 119
Employee Benefits.This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010). As the Department does not operate a defined benefit 
plan, the impact of the change is limited to measuring annual leave as a long-term employee benefit.  The resultant discounting of 
the annual leave benefit has an immaterial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements
This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, introducing a number 
of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.

1 July 2011
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Operative for 
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB 128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 1053
Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards
This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing 
general purpose financial statements.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 
131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]
[Modified by AASB 2010-7].

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2010-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 
107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 
5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052].
This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure 
requirements for certain types of entities.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]. 
 
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing 
AASB 9 in December 2010.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB  
2011-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054].
This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve 
convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure reporting.  There is no financial 
impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2011-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate 
Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131].
This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement 
for the consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity to be IFRS compliant, provided 
that the parent entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity comply with Australian Accounting Standards 
or Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 
5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17].
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial 
Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  The Department has not yet determined the application 
or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB  
2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 
110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 
17, 19, 131 & 132].
This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013
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Operative for 
reporting periods 
beginning on/after

AASB  
2011-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 
120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049].
This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially 
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).  The Department has not yet determined the application 
or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jul 2012

AASB  
2011-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 
2011-8 and Int 14].
This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 
Employee Benefits in September 2011.  The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB  
2011-11

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements
This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 (September 2011).  
There is limited financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB  
2012-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement - Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 3, 7, 13, 
140 & 141].
This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure requirements for additional and amended disclosures arising from 
AASB 13 and the consequential amendments implemented through AASB 2011-8.  There is no financial impact..

1 Jul 2013

Changes in accounting estimates
There have been no changes in accounting estimates during the year.
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Note 9.  Depreciation and amortisation 
expense

2012
$000

Depreciation
Office fit out  8,840 
Computer Equipment  941 
Furniture and Equipment  42 
Vehicles  69,113 
Buildings  4,086 
Leasehold improvements  2,732 
Total Depreciation  85,755 
Amortisation
Computing software  40,767 
Intangibles   
computer systems development  2,714 

Total Amortisation  43,481 
Total Depreciation and Amortisation  129,236 

Note 10. Finance costs
2012
$000

WATC – Interest on borrowings  8,685 
 8,685 

Note 11. Accommodation expenses
2012
$000

Repairs and maintenance buildings  26,900 
Cleaning and security  142 
Lease rentals  15,081 

 42,123 

Note 12. Grants and subsidies
2012
$000

Grants - Recurrent  2,198 
 2,198 

Note 13. Other expenses
2012
$000

Minor purchases  964 
Employment on-costs (a)  (14)
Cost of goods sold  136 
Other expenses (b)  7,773 

 8,858 

(a) Includes workers’ compensation insurance and 
other employment on-costs.  The on-costs liability 
associated with the recognition of annual and long 
service leave liability is included at note 29 ‘Provisions’.  
Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the 
provision for leave are employee benefits and are not 
included in employment on-costs. Refer also to note 
7 ‘Employee benefits expense’.

(b) Includes audit fees. Refer also to note 39 
‘Remuneration of auditor’.

Note 7. Employee benefits expense
2012
$000

Wages and salaries (a)  99,263 
Superannuation Defined  
Contribution (b)  12,026 

Long Service Leave (c)  4,500 
Annual Leave (c)  16,147 
Other related expenses  3,475 

 135,411 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the 
employee plus the fringe benefits tax component.

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold 
State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid).

(c) Includes a superannuation contribution component. 

Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation 
insurance are included at note 13 ‘Other expenses’. 

The employment on-costs liability is included at note 29 
‘Provisions’.

Note 8. Supplies and services
2012
$000

Managed contracts 1,255,680 
Communications  4,053 
Consultants and contractors  65,154 
Consumables  1,504 
Repairs and maintenance  594 
Travel  661 
Legal costs  695 
Other  8,419 

1,336,759 
 
Supplies and services include amounts supplied free of 
charge as set out in note 16.
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Note 14. Income
2012
$000

User charges and fees
Miscellaneous services  713 
Rents for government office 
accommodation  217,190 

Managed building works (a)  
1,062,047 

Vehicle fleet lease rental  89,184 
Other  37,289 

 
1,406,422 

Commonwealth grants and 
contributions
Commonwealth grants and 
contributions  1,610 

 1,610 
Interest revenue
Interest revenue  809 

 809 
Other revenue
Recoups  3,078 
Government vehicle scheme (GVS)  125 
Other  1,238 

 4,442 
 

1,413,281 

(a) Refer also to note 19 ‘Receivables’.

Note 15. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of 
non‑current assets

2012
$000

Cost of Disposal of Non-Current 
Assets
Motor vehicles 58,848
Other assets 4

58,852
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-
Current Assets
Motor vehicles  70,372 

70,372
Net gain 11,520

Note 16. Income from State Government
2012
$000

Appropriation received during the 
year:
Service appropriation(a) 266,137

Resources received free of charge(b)

Determined on the basis of the 
following estimates provided by 
agencies:
Department of the Attorney General  870 
Landgate  10,857 

 11,727 

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Infrastructure and 
Headworks Account (c)  160 

 160 

 278,023 

(a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting 
the net cost of services delivered.  The appropriation 
revenue comprises a cash component and a 
receivable (asset).  The receivable (holding account) 
comprises the depreciation expense for the year and 
any agreed increase in leave liability during the year.

(b) Where assets or services have been received 
free of charge or for nominal cost, the Department 
recognises revenue equivalent to the fair value of  
the assets and/or the fair value of those services that 
can be reliably measured and which would have been 
purchased if they were not donated,  and those 
fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, 
as applicable.  Where the contributions of assets or 
services are in the nature of  contributions by 
owners, the Department makes an adjustment direct 
to equity.

(c) State Government Royalties for Regions funds have 
been used to fund the increase in district allowance 
payments for eligible regional public sector 
employees.

Note 17. Cash and cash equivalents
2012
$000

Current
Cash at bank 196,863
Cash on hand 13

196,876
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Note 18. Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

2012
$000

Current
Conservation Fund (a) 196
Indian Ocean Territories Trust Fund 263
Regional Remote Power Generation 
Program(b)  4,331 

4,790

Non-current
Accrued salaries suspense account 3,770

Total 8,560

(a) Unspent Commonwealth grant funding for various 
public programs and conservation at Fremantle 
Prison.

(b) Fund provided by Commonwealth Government for 
the purpose of providing grant funding for the conduct 
of energy related initiatives.

(c) Amount held in the suspense account is only to be 
used for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a 
financial year that occurs every 11 years.

Note 19. Receivables
2012
$000

Current
Receivables 61,729
Accrued revenue 23,510
GST receivable 13,525
Interest receivable 74
Trust account(a) 7,643

106,481

Underbillings(b) 103,588

Total Current 210,069

Non‑current
Receivables 45
Total Non-current 45
Total Receivables 210,114

(a) Relates to funds held in trust by the Department’s 
corporate property manager for management of 
rental services, management of Fremantle Prison 
Café, and consumables and incidental costs 
relating to WA Government’s occupation of Gordon 
Stephenson House.

(b) Contract costs incurred but not yet billed to clients.

The Department does not hold any collateral as security 
or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
Refer also to note 2(q) ‘Receivables’ and note 38 
‘Financial instruments’.

Note 20. Finance lease receivables
The Department leases vehicles to Western Australian 
State Government agencies and entities. The majority 
of leases are operating leases, the balance are finance 
leases.

At balance date, the term of existing finance lease 
contracts varies between four and five years.  A contract 
is subject to a fixed market rate of interest set at the 
time the contract is established.  All contracts contain 
a renewal option and are secured by the underlying 
vehicle. Residual values are guaranteed by the relevant 
contracting agency or the entity.

2012
$000

Gross investment in finance lease 
contracts 5,388

Less unearned finance income  (848)
Net investment in finance lease 
contracts 4,540

Less unguaranteed residual values of 
the finance leases at the balance date
Present value of the future minimum 
lease payment receivables 4,540

Accumulated allowances for 
unallocated minimum lease payment 
receivables

-

As at balance date, the gross investment and present 
value of receivables relating to the future minimum 
lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease 
arrangements were distributed as follows:

Current
Not later than one year 989
Non‑current
Later than one year and not later than 
5 years 2,545

Later than 5 years 1,006
3,551

Total 4,540
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Note 21. Inventories

2012
$000

Inventories held for resale 67
67

Refer also to note 2(p) ‘Inventories’.

Note 22. Amounts receivable for 
services (holding account)

2012
$000

Current 1,466
Non-current 149,510
Total 150,976

Represents the non-cash component of service  
appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used 
for asset replacement or payment of leave liability. 

Refer also to note 2(o) ‘Amounts receivable for services 
(holding account)’.  

Note 23. Other current assets
2012
$000

Prepayments 19,938
19,938

Note 24. Property, plant, equipment and 
vehicles

2012
$000

Land
At fair value(a) 167,496
Accumulated impairment losses -

167,496
Buildings
At fair value(a) 203,796
Accumulated depreciation  (2,344)
Accumulated impairment losses -

201,452
Leasehold improvements
At cost 27,042
Accumulated depreciation  (2,732)

24,310
Furniture and equipment
At cost 192
Accumulated depreciation (42)

151
Computer equipment
At cost 3,163
Accumulated depreciation  (934)

2,229
Office fit out
At cost 128,807
Accumulated depreciation  (8,828)

119,978
Motor Vehicles
At cost 381,452
Accumulated depreciation  (113,157)

268,295
Works in progress
At cost 18,909

18,909
Total
At fair value/cost 930,856
Accumulated depreciation  (128,037)

802,820

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2011 
by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services). The valuations were performed 
during the year ended 30 June 2012 and recognised 
at 30 June 2012.  In undertaking the revaluation, fair 
value was determined by reference to market values 
for land: $65.849 million and buildings: $128.160 
million  for the remaining balance, fair value of land 
was determined on the basis of current use and for 
buildings on the basis of depreciated replacement 
cost.

Refer also to note 2(g) ‘Property, Plant, Equipment and 
Vehicles’.
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below. 

Land Buildings Leasehold 
improvements

Furniture 
and 

equipment
Computer 

equipment
Office fit 

out
Motor 

vehicles
Work in 

progress Total

2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Distribution from owner  180,126  199,586  56,442  238  2,185  1,220  273,314  12,326  725,437 
Additions  532  9,209  7,152  154  1,185  13  129,086  98,554  245,885 
Transfers  (1,100)  (1,500)  (36,552)  (199)  (201)  127,586  -  (91,971)  (3,937)
Other disposals  (15,000)  -  -  -  -  -  (64,991)  -  (79,991)
Revaluations  2,938  (1,757)  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,181 
Depreciation  -  (4,086)  (2,732)  (42)  (941)  (8,841)  (69,113)  -  (85,755)
Carrying amount at end of year 167,496 201,452 24,310 151 2,228 119,978 268,296 18,909  802,820 

Note 25. Intangible assets
2012
$000

Licence
At cost 12,360
Accumulated amortisation  (2,714)

9,646
Computer software
At cost 148,609
Accumulated amortisation  (40,767)

107,842
Work in progress
At cost 19,570

19,570
Total
At cost 180,539
Accumulated amortisation  (43,481)

137,057

Note 25.  

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of intangibles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in 
the table below. 

Licence Computer 
software

Work in 
progress Total

2012 $000 $000 $000 $000
Distribution from Owner  10,611  131,726  23,810 166,147
Additions  1,750  -  11,738 13,488
Transfers  (1)  (18)  923 904
Transfers to computer software  -  16,901  (16,901) -
Revaluation increments  -  -  - -
Impairment losses recognised in Statement of 
Comprehensive Income  -  -  - -

Impairment losses reversed in Statement of 
Comprehensive Income  -  -  - -

Amortisation expense  (2,714)  (40,767)  -  (43,481)
Carrying amount at end of year 9,646 107,842 19,570 137,057
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Note 29. Provisions
2012
$000

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave(a) 12,895
Long service leave(b) 19,256
Other  (42)

32,110
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c) 3,307

3,307
Total current 35,416

Non current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave(b) 6,901

6,901
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c)  828 
Restoration costs(d) 504
Other -

 1,332 
Total Non‑current 8,234
Total Provisions 43,650

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as 
current as there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the liabilities will occur as follows:

2012
$000

Within 12 months of the end of the 
reporting period 7,904

More than 12 months after the 
reporting period 4,991

12,895

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as 
current where there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the liabilities will occur as follows: 

2012
$000

Within 12 months of the end of the 
reporting period 7,124

More than 12 months after the 
reporting period 19,033

26,157
(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave 

liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment 
on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.  
The provision is the present value of expected future 
payments.  The associated expense, apart from the 
unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed 
in note 13 ‘Other expenses’.

(d) The Department acquired an intractable waste facility 
at Mt Walton East in April 2005. This provision is for 
the rehabilitation of the intractable waste facility.

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions 
during the financial year, other than 
employee benefits, are set out below.

2012
$000

Restoration costs provisions
Carrying amount at start of year 474
Provisions transferred in -
Additional provisions recognised 30
Payments/other sacrifices of 
economic benefits -

Unwinding of the discount -
Carrying amount at end of year 504
Employment on‑cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year -
Provisions transferred in -
Additional provisions recognised 3,962
Payments/other sacrifices of 
economic benefits -

Unwinding of the discount -
Carrying amount at end of year 3,962

4,466

Note 26. Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets at 30 
June 2012.The Department held no goodwill or 
intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during 
the reporting period. All surplus assets at 30 June 
2012 have either been classified as assets held for 
sale or written-off.

Note 27. Payables
2012
$000

Current
Trade payables  11,157 
GST payable  14,689 
Accrued salaries  4,916 
Accrued expenses  108,068
Interest – Western Australia Treasury 
Corporation  331 

Other payables  114
139,275

Overbillings(a) 180,506
Total Payables 319,781

(a) Billings to clients less contract costs incurred. 

Refer to note 2(r) ‘Payables’ and note 38 ‘Financial 
instruments’.

Note 28. Borrowings

2012
$000

Current
Western Australia Treasury Corporation 59,854

59,824
Non‑current
Western Australia Treasury Corporation 87,723

87,723
Total Borrowings 147,577 
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Note 30. Lease Incentives

2012
$000

Lease incentives
Lease incentives 36,699

36,699

Note 31. Equity
Equity represents the residual interest in the net 
assets of the Department.  The Government holds 
the equity interest in the Department on behalf 
of the community. The asset revaluation surplus 
represents that portion of equity resulting from the 
revaluation of non-current assets.

2012
$000

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period -

Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation 93,906

Distribution by owners
Transfer of net assets from other 
agencies:
Ofifce of Energy(a)  9,460 
Department of Health(b) 9,435
Department of Treasury(c) 831,428
Total distribution from owners 850,323

Distribution to owners
Transfer of net assets to other agencies:
Transfer of Kalgoorlie Public Building to 
Department of the Attorney General  (2,600)

Payment to WA Energy Disputes 
Arbitrator  (880)

Balance at end of period 940,749

Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of year -
Net revaluation increments/
(decrements):
Buildings  2,938 
Balance at end of year  2,938 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year -
Result for the period 39,555
Balance at end of year 39,555

Transfer of net 
assets from: 

 Office of 
Energy(a)  Health(b)  Treasury(c)

 $000  $000  $000 
Cash and cash 
equivalents  10,528  -  126,922 

Property, plant, 
equipment and 
vehicles

 40  9,435  725,437 

Intangible assets  -  -  166,147 
Other Assets  2,173  -  466,318 
Total Assets  12,741  9,435  1,484,824 

Liabilities  (1,415)  -  (613,412)
Provisions  (1,866)  -  (39,985)
Total Liabilities 
and provisions  (3,281)  -  (653,397)

Total 
Distribution from 
owners

 9,460  9,435  831,427 

Note 32. Notes to the Statement of Cash 
Flows

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the 
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related 
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2012
$000

Cash and cash equivalents(a) 196,876
Restricted cash and cash equivalents(b) 8,560

205,436
(a) Refer also to note 17
(b) Refer also to note 18 
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Note 33. Resources provided free of 
charge
During the year the following resources were 
provided to agencies free of charge for functions 
outside the normal operations of the Department:

2012
$000

Department of Indigenous Affairs  91 
Department of Agriculture  292 
Department of Culture and the Arts  358 
Mid West Development Commission  10 
Department of Commerce  580 
Curriculum Council  10 
Department of Racing, Gaming and 
Liquor  5 

Department of Education Services  10 
Landgate  436 
Parliamentary Services Department  15 
Department of Mines and Petroleum  307 
The Ombudsman  144 
Pilbara Development Commission  5 
Western Australia Police  6,805 
Department of the Premier and 
Cabinet  1,173 

Office of the Director of Public 
Prosecutions  10 

Disability Services Commission  389 
Department of Education  27,622 
Equal Opportunity Commission  5 
Department of Water  247 
Office of the Information Commissioner  46 
Department of Sport and Recreation  1,268 
Gascoyne Development Commission  5 
Goldfields Esperance Development 
Commission  10 

Great Southern Development 
Commission  5 

South West Development Commission  15 

2012
$000

Western Australian Tourism 
Commission  261 

Western Australian Electoral 
Commission  15 

Heritage Council of WA  106 
Department of Housing  97 
Western Australia Treasury 
Corporation  5 

Wheatbelt Development Commission  15 
Industrial Relations Commission  5 
Kimberley Development Commission  10 
Legal Aid Commission Western 
Australia  5 

Law Reform Commission of Western 
Australia  5 

Economic Regulation Authority  108 
Corruption and Crime Commission  5 
Department of Environment and 
Conservation  295 

Department of Health  3,547 
Peel Development Commission  5 
Forest Products Commission  5 
Western Australia Meat Industries 
Authority  5 

Independent Market Operator  5 
Department of Fisheries  290 
Small Business Development 
Corporation  131 

Department of the Attorney General  1,804 
Department of Corrective Services  1,808 
Department for Child Protection  1,482 
Department for Communities  395 
West Coast Institute of Training  10 
Office of the Commissioner for 
Children and Young People  5 

Public Sector Commission  154 

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash 
flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

2012
$000

Net cost of services  (238,468)
Non‑cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 
expense (note 9)  129,236 

Doubtful debts expense  - 
Superannuation expense  - 
Resources received free of charge 
(note 16)  11,727 

Finance costs – unwinding of 
discounts  - 

Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, 
plant and equipment (note 15)  (11,520)

(Increase)/decrease in assets
Current receivables (a)  80,061 
Current inventories  2 
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (a)  (33,557)
Accrued salaries  (119)
Current provisions  - 
Other current liabilities  (124)
Employee benefits  5,219 
Other non-current liabilities  4,990 

Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)  156,457 
Change in GST in receivables/
payables (c)  (155,185)

Net cash provided by/(used in) 
operating activities  (51,282)

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) 
receivable/payable in respect of GST and the 
receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of 
non-current assets are not included in these itemsas 
they do not form part of the reconciling items.

(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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2012
$000

Department of State Development 114
Department of Transport  933 
Department of Planning  1,281 
Chem Centre  5 
Public Transport Authority  5 
Department of Regional Development 
and Land  325 

Main Roads Western Australia  5 
Department of Training and Workforce 
Development  823 

Department of Local Government  232 
Department of Treasury  534 
Office of the Inspector of Custodial 
Services  41 

Office of the Auditor General  209 
Health and Disability Services 
Complaint Office  32 

54,975

Note 34. Commitments
The commitments below are inclusive of GST where 
relevant.

2012
$000

Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, 
being contracted capital expenditure 
additional to the amounts reported in 
the financial statements, are payable 
as follows:
Within 1 year  4,059 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 
years  - 

Later than 5 years  20,536 
24,595

2012
$000

Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at 
the end of the reporting period but not recognised 
in the financial statements are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 140,092
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 
years 343,411

Later than 5 years 304,234
787,737

Representing:
Cancellable operating leases
Non-cancellable operating leases 787,737
Future finance charges on finance 
leases -

787,737

The property leases are non-cancellable and have terms 
ranging from 1 year to 15 years, with rent generally 
payable monthly in advance. Depending on the terms 
and conditions of the lease concerned, rent review 
provisions exist which generally result in rental increases 
throughout the lease term.  Options exist in most leases 
which permit leases to be extended under the prevailing 
lease terms and conditions, resulting in leases being 
extended beyond their original lease term.

Note 35. Contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets 
 
Contingent liabilities
In addition to the liabilities included in the financial 
statements, there are the following contingent 
liabilities:

2012
$000

Contract Claims in Dispute 208

Contaminated Sites Act 2003
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the 
Department is required to report known and 
suspected contaminated sites to the Department of 
Environment and Conservation (DEC). 

In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these 
sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the 
environment and environmental values.  Where 
sites are classified as contaminated - remediation 
required or possibly contaminated - investigation 
required, the Department may have a liability in 
respect of investigation or remediation expenses.

During 2006-2007 financial year the Department 
reported one contaminated site to DEC. Whilst 
there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future 
expenses that may be incurred in the remediation 
of this site, the Department may apply for funding 
from the Contaminated Sites Management Account 
to undertake further investigative work or to meet 
remediation costs that may be required.

See also note 2(u) ‘Provisions and note 29 ‘Provisions’.
 
Contingent assets

Contingent assets are additional to the assets included 
in the financial statements. 

2012
$000

Litigation in progress 16,373

Contingent assets are mainly attributable to disputes 
concerning Construction Contract Act adjudications.



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 71Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity 
analysis table at note 39(c), the Department is not 
exposed to interest rate risk because apart from 
minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash 
and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-
interest bearing and have no borrowings other than 
the Treasurer’s advance (non-interest bearing), 
WATC borrowings and finance leases (fixed interest 
rate).

(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying 
amounts of each of the following categories of 
financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of 
the reporting period are as follows:

2012
$000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 196,876
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,560
Receivables(a) 196,589
Finance lease receivables 4,540
Amounts receivable for services 150,976

557,541
Financial Liabilities
Payables(b) 124,586
WATC borrowings 147,577
Unearned Revenue – construction project 
in progress 180,506

452,669

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST 
recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(b) The amount of payables excludes GST payable to the 
ATO (statutory payable).

Note 36. Related Bodies and affiliated 
bodies

The Department has no related bodies or affiliated 
bodies.

Note 37. Events occurring after the end 
of the reporting period

The Department is unaware of any event occurring 
after reporting date that would materially affect the 
financial statements.

Note 38.  Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and  
policies
Financial instruments held by the Department are 
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and 
cash equivalents, borrowings, finance leases, 
Treasurer’s advances, loans and receivables and 
payables.  The Department has limited exposure 
to financial risks.  The Department’s overall risk 
management program focuses on managing the 
following risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of 
the Department’s receivables defaulting on their 
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 
the Department.  

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end 
of the reporting period in relation to each class of 
recognised financial assets is the gross carrying 
amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions 
for impairment as shown in the table at note 39(c) 
‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 19 
‘Receivables’.

Credit risk associated with the Department’s 
financial assets is minimal because the main 
receivable is the amount receivable for services 
(holding account).  For receivables other than 
government, the Department trades only with 
recognised, creditworthy third parties.  

The Department has policies in place to ensure 
that sales of products and services are made to 
customers with an appropriate credit history.  In 
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis with the result that the Department’s 
exposure to bad debts is minimal.  At the end of 
the reporting period there were no significant 
concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable 
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
The Department is exposed to liquidity risk through 
its trading in the normal course of business.
  
The Department has appropriate procedures 
to manage cash flows including drawdowns of 
appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to 
ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet 
its commitments.

The Department has a facility agreement in place 
with the Western Australian Treasury Corporation 
(WATC) to borrow up to $250 million to meet State 
Fleet contractual requirements, purchase vehicles 
and provide working capital. As at 30 June 2012 
$148 million was drawn against the facility.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market 
prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates will affect the Department’s income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
Department does not trade in foreign currency and 
is not materially exposed to other price risks (for 
example, equity securities or commodity prices 
changes). The Department’s exposure to market 
risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to 
the long-term debt obligations.

The Department’s borrowings are all obtained 
through the WATC and are at fixed rates with 
varying maturities.  The risk is managed by WATC 
through portfolio diversification and variation in 
maturity dates.  



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 72Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk and interest rate exposures

The following table discloses the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Department’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of 
financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Department.

The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds. 

The Department does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.

Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired

Carrying 
Amount

Not past due and not 
impaired

Up to 1 
month

1‑3 
months

3 months 
to

1 year
1‑5 years

More 
than

5 years

Impaired 
financial

assets 
2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 196,876 ‑ 196,876  -  -  -  -  -  ‑ 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,560 ‑ 8,560  -  -  -  -  -  ‑ 
Receivables(a) 196,589 ‑ 135,441  39,637  10,018  10,783  710  -  ‑ 
Finance lease receivables 4,540 ‑ 4,540  -  -  -  -  -  ‑ 
Amounts receivable for services 150,976 - 150,976  -  -  -  -  -  - 

557,541 ‑ 496,393  39,637  10,018  10,783  710  ‑  ‑ 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

The following table discloses the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.  The maturity 
analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities

Carrying 
Amount

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Weighted 

Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

Non‑
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

Up to
1 month

1‑3 
months

3 
months 

to 1 year
1‑5 

years
More 
Than

5 years

2012 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.83% 196,876 - 8,251 - 196,876 196,876 - - - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,560 - - - 8,560 8560 - - - -
Receivables(a) 196,589 - - - 196,589 84,720  104,521 - 837 6511
Finance lease receivables 6.23% 4,540 - 4,540 - 4,380 40 203 746 2,544 1,007
Amounts receivable for services 150,976 - - - 150,976  1,466 - - - 149,510

557,541 ‑  12,791 ‑ 557,381 291,662 104,724 746 3,381 157,028

Financial Liabilities
Payables 124,586 - - - 124,586 123,112 923 472 76 3
WATC borrowings 4.84% 147,577 147,577 - - 147,577 5,170 10,962 43,722 87,723 -
Unearned revenue – construction projects in 
progress 180,506 - - - 180,506 - 180,506 - - -

452,669  147,577 ‑ ‑ 452,669 128,282 192,391 44,194 87,799 3

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table represents a summary of 
the interest rate sensitivity of the Department’s 
financial assets and liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period on the surplus for the period and 
equity for a one per cent change in interest rates.  It 
is assumed that the change in interest rates is held 
constant throughout the reporting period.

Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Position, whether they 
are carried at cost of fair value, are recognised 
at amounts that represent a reasonable 
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated 
in the applicable notes.

-100 basis 
points

+100 basis 
points

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial 
Assets
Cash 
and cash 
equivalents

8,251  (83)  (83)  83  83 

Finance 
lease 
receivables

4,540  (45)  (45)  45  45 

Total 
Increase/
(Decrease)

12,791  (128) (128)  128  128 

Note 39. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in 
respect of the audit for the current financial year is 
as follows:

2012
$000

Department of Finance 351
351

Note 40. Remuneration of senior 
officers
The number of senior officers whose total fees, 
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits 
and other benefits for the financial year fall within 
the following bands are:

$ 2012
150,000 – 200,000  1 
200,001 – 250,000  2 
250,001 – 300,000  2 
300,001 – 350,000  - 
350,001 – 400,000  - 
400,001 – 450,000  1 

$000
Total remuneration of senior officers  1,596 

The total remuneration includes the superannuation 
expense incurred by the Department in respect of 
senior officers.

Note 41. Explanatory statement – 
controlled items
Significant variations between estimates and actual 
results for income and expense as presented in the 
financial statement titled ‘Summary of Consolidated 
Account Appropriations and Income Estimates’ are 
shown below. Significant variations are considered 
to be those greater than ten per cent of the principal 
amount or $5 million. 

In respect of any item for which there is not a 
significant variation, no explanation is given. 

Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services
Significant variances between estimates and actual 2012

2012
Estimate

2012
Movements

2012
Actual

$000 $000 $000
Appropriation 
provided to deliver 
services

 184,068  -  
184,068 

Section 25 - Transfer 
to Landgate  (69)  (69)

Section 25 - Transfer 
of Corporate 
Services to 
Department of 
Treasury

 39,649  39,649 

Section 25 - Transfer 
of Sunset Hospital 
from Department of 
Health

 470  470 

Section 25 - 
Transfer of Strategic 
Information 
Management System 
to Department of 
Treasury

 (593)  (593)

Section 25 - Transfer 
of Public Utilities 
Office

 20,620  20,620 

Decommissioning 
of Office of Shared 
Services - Human 
Resources function

 576  576 

Decommissioning 
of Office of Shared 
Services - Process 
and Write Off

 19,918  19,918 

2011-12 Voluntary 
Severance Offer  1,521  1,521 

Transfer of direct 
Corporate Services 
cost to Department 
of Treasury

 (23)  (23)

184,068 82,069 266,137
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2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000

1 State Fleet 
Service(a)  93,164 78,951  (14,213)

2
Revenue 
Assessment and 
Collection

 40,461 37,541  (2,920)

3
Grants and 
Subsidies 
Administration

 3,923 4,042  119 

4

Facilitate the 
Development and 
Management of 
Agency Specific 
Contracts

 32,506 32,047  (459)

5

Development 
and Management 
of Whole-of-
Government 
Common 
Use Contract 
Arrangements

 10,987 14,271  3,284 

6

Project 
Management, 
Decommissioning 
of the Whole-
of-Government 
Shared Corporate 
Services Reform

 6,825 11,191  4,366 

7
Provision of 
Financial and 
Payroll Services(b)

 88,825 103,517  14,692

8 Services to 
Government  9,225 8,541  (684)

9

Leads the 
Planning and 
Delivery of New 
Government 
Buildings(c)

 787,362 849,350  61,988

2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000

10

Leads the 
Planning and 
Delivery of 
Government 
Building 
Maintenance(d)

 203,446 237,781  34,335

11

Leads the 
Planning and 
Delivery of 
Government 
Office 
Accommodation(e)

 299,858 276,574  (23,284)

12
Development and 
Implementation of 
Energy Policy and 
Programs(f)

 20,620 9,468  (11,152)

1,597,202 1,663,274  66,072 

Service expenditure

Significant variances between estimate and actual 
results for 2012

(a) The variation between actual and estimate is 
attributable predominantly to the vehicle depreciation 
expense.  The vehicle depreciation expenses are 
affected by a number of variables including; vehicle 
numbers, vehicle selection, lease terms and the level 
of lease resets.  The Government’s vehicle reduction 
program and the drive by agencies to reduce 
expenditure have all had a marked impact in the 
actual figures. The interest expense has also varied 
for the same reasons, though its contribution to the 
variation is not as material as that of the depreciation 
expense.

(b) The increase is primarily due to the increase in 
depreciation expenditure as a result of the decision 
to write off the Shared Service Oracle asset as a 
result of the Government’s decision to decommission 
Shared Services in 2011.

(c) The outturn for Capital works for 2011-12 is based on 
the works in progress and the anticipated expenditure 
on these contracts for the remainder of the financial 
year. The YTD Capital expenditure is in advance of 
current budget expectations.

(d) The outturn for Building Maintenance expenditure for 
2011-12 is based on the total amount of work completed 
March YTD and the amount of estimated expenditure 
for the remainder of the financial year and factoring in 
prior year’s historical expenditure trends. The actual 
YTD Maintenance expenditure is in advance of current 
budget expectations.

(e) The variance between the estimate and actual is the 
result of movements in the value of gross rentals of 
buildings and office accommodation managed.

(f) The variance is due mainly to lower than anticipated 
expenditure on some projects including the Hardship 
Efficiency Program, Solar Water Heater Subsidies 
Scheme and the Solar Schools Program. Other projects 
have also been rescheduled to better align their 
delivery timelines with external regulatory processes 
and changes in government priorities. Expenditure on 
accommodation and associated costs have also been 
reduced as a result of the relocation of the former 
Office of Energy from Governor Stirling Tower to the 
Public Utilities Offices in Albert Facey House.

Capital contribution

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 
2012

2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Capital 
contribution(a) 144,068 93,906 (50,162)

(a) The decrease in capital contribution mainly reflects 
the decommissioning of the Office of Shared 
Services and carryover funding to the outyears for 
the Master Planning Strategy for Government Office 
Accommodation and Cabinet Offices.
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Note 42. Explanatory statement – 
administered items
The summary of Administered Items discloses 
appropriations and other statutes expenditure, the actual 
expenditures made and the revenue estimates and 
revenue earned. The following table compares budget 
estimates and actual results for 2012 of items having 
significant variations, and explanations for the variations 
are given below. A significant variation is one that is in 
excess of ten percent of the principal figure and $10 
million.

2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
ADMINISTERED 
TRANSACTIONS
RECURRENT 
ADMINISTERED
Item 64 Amount 
provided for 
Administered 
Grants, Subsides 
and Other Transfer 
Payments

137,644 117,692  (19,952)

Authorised by 
Other Statutes
First Home Owner 
Grant Act 2000 126,360 105,782  (20,578)

2012 2012 2012
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
DETAILS 
OF INCOME 
ESTIMATES
Taxation
Landholder Duty 48,800 101,388 52,588
Appropriations
First Home Owner 
Grant Act 2000 126,360 105,782  (20,578)

Administered 
Grants and 
Transfer Payments

137,644 117,693  (19,951)

Item 64 – Amount provided for Administered Grants, 
Subsidies and Other Transfer Payments.

At $117.7 million, spending on this item was $20 million 
lower than expected.

The lower than expected outcome was mainly due 
to refunds from past years’ revenue collections  
($16.0 million). These refunds vary throughout the year 
depending on the timing of resolutions of matters in  
dispute with the Commissioner of State Revenue, 
including matters under review in the State Administrative 
Tribunal and the Courts.

The remainder of this variance is made up of movement 
across various smaller payments.

Landholder Duty
Landholder duty transactions were $52.6 million higher 
than expected, mainly reflecting higher than expected 
large value transactions recorded during 2011-12. 

First Home Owner Grant Act 2000
At the time of the Budget, the Western Australian property 
market was expected to begin to recover from recent low 
activity and price levels following the Global Financial 
Crisis during 2011-12.  However, the property market 
remained subdued during 2011-12, with a resulting lower 
than expected demand for First Home Owner Grants. 

Note 43. Supplementary financial 
information

(a)  Write‑offs

During the financial year, $14 million was written off 
by the Department under the authority of:

2012
$000

Accountable Authority 7,435
Minister 2,461
Executive Council 4,127

14,023

(b)  Write‑offs by category

2012
$000

Public assets 1,443
Debts due to the State 12,580

14,023
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Note 44. Service delivery arrangements 
Indian Ocean Territories

2012
$000

Revenue  949 
Commonwealth receipts  949 
Expenditure
Consultants and contractors  720 
Administration and other costs  118 
Pay-roll Tax and Business Franchise  25 
Duties  - 
Land Tax  4 
Compliance  27 

 894 
Surplus/(deficit) for the period  55 

Balance brought forward  210 
Prior Year Adjustment  ‑ 
Balance carried forward  265 

Note 45. Special Purpose Accounts ‑ 
administered
Special purpose account section 10 of 
the Financial Management Act 2006

Departmental Receipts in Suspense – Office of 
State Revenue

The purpose of the special purpose account is to 
hold funds pending identification of the purpose of 
which those monies were received or identification 
of where those monies are to be credited or paid. 

2012
$000

Balance at the start of the year 1
Receipts 354
Payments (175)
Balance at the end of the year 180

Indian Ocean Territories

The purpose of the special account is to hold taxation 
collections pending transfer to the Commonwealth 
of Australia in accordance with the Service Level 
Agreement entered into with the Commonwealth.

2012
$000

Balance at the start of the year 347
Receipts 3,250
Payments  (3,355)
Balance at the end of the year 242

Note 46. Administered income and 
expenses

2012
$000

Expenses
Grants, subsidies and transfers 223,475
Other expenses 6,044,905
Collections transferred to other 
agencies 38,198

Total Administered expenses 6,306,578
Incomes
Taxation 6,013,056
Other revenue 31,849
Appropriations 223,475
Collections raised on behalf of other 
agencies 38,198

Total Administered revenues 6,306,578
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Note 47. Disclosure of administered 
income and expenses by service

Revenue 
Assessment 

and 
Collection

Grants and 
Subsidies 

Administration
Total

Service 2 Service 3
2012 2012 2012
$000 $000 $000

COST OF 
SERVICES
Expenses 
Grants, 
subsidies and 
transfers

223,475 223,475

Other 
expenses 6,044,905 6,044,905

Collections 
transferred 
to other 
agencies

38,198 38,198

Total 
administered 
expenses

6,044,905 261,673 6,306,578

Income 
Taxation 6,013,056 6,013,056
Other revenue 31,849 31,849
Appropriations 223,475 223,475
Collections 
raised on 
behalf of other 
agencies

38,198 38,198

Total 
administered 
income  

6,044,905 261,673 6,306,578

Note 48. Administered assets and 
liabilities

2012
$000

Current Assets
Taxation receivable 369,592
Total Administered Current Assets 369,592

Non‑Current Assets
Other receivables 51,300
Total Administered Non‑Current 
Assets 51,300

Total Administered Assets 420,892

Current Liabilities
Other payables 62,571
Total Administered Current 
Liabilities 62,571

Total Administered Liabilities 62,571
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Key Performance Indicators

Certification of Key Performance 
Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2012

I hereby certify that the key performance 
indicators are based on proper records, are 
relevant and appropriate for assisting users 
to assess the Department of Finance’s 
performance, and fairly represent the 
performance of the Department for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Anne Nolan
Director General 
11 September 2012
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Changes to the Outcome Based 
Management Framework

As a new Department, the focus was to 
establish goals and set the direction for the 
agency going forward.  No changes were 
made to the Outcome Based Management 
Structure during 2011-12.  At the close of 
the reporting year a committee was formed 
to undertake a review of the structure 
during 2012-13. 

Overview

Outcomes

The Government’s desired outcomes that 
the Department works to achieve through 
its services are:

1. Sustainable and transparent public 
sector finances 
Service 1: State Fleet Service

2. Due and payable revenue is collected 
and eligible grants, subsidies and 
rebates paid
Service 2: Revenue assessment and 

collection
Service 3: Grants and subsidies 

administration

3. Value‑for‑money from public sector 
procurement
Service 4: Facilitate the development 

and management of agency-
specific	contracts

Service 5: Development and 
management of whole-of-
government common use 
contract arrangements

4. Provision of effective shared 
corporate services
Service 6: Project management, 

coordination and 
implementation of the 
w h o l e - o f - g o v e r n m e n t 
shared corporate services 
reform 

Service	7:	 Provision	 of	 financial	
and human resource 
services

5. Value‑for‑money from the 
management of the Government’s 
non‑residential buildings and public 
works
Service 8: Leads the planning and 

delivery of new Government 
buildings

Service 9: Leads the planning and 
delivery of Government 
building maintenance

Service 10: Leads the planning and 
delivery of Government 
office	accommodation

6. A sustainable, efficient, secure and 
competitive energy sector
Service 11: Development and 

implementation of energy 
policy and programs

In April 2012, the new Public Utilities Office 
was established within the Department of 
Finance and reporting against this outcome 
applies for the period 1 April 2012 to 30 
June 2012 in accordance with Treasurer’s 
Instruction 903.
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Measuring the Performance
The Department of Finance measures its performance through statistical information and survey questionnaires. Statistical indicators are 
included to help report performance in both outcome and service areas. The use of in-house statistical data complements the survey-
based results and adds scope and objectivity to the sources of information used in measuring our performance.

Performance measures for Outcome 3, Services 4 and 5 are based on client surveys and statistical information relating to contracting 
services.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

Government Procurement

Outcome 1: Sustainable and transparent public sector finances

The Department works to maintain sustainable and transparent public sector finances.  Its commitment to this key role is reflected in 
advice to the Government on management of the Government’s light vehicle fleet.
The key indicators of effectiveness demonstrate measurable outcomes of effectiveness in this role.

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09  
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Profitability of the State’s light vehicle fleet (profit in $’000) $12,433 $22,225 $23,466 $13,581 $23,441

The actual result for 2011-12 was greater than target due to higher than anticipated revenue from lease over-runs and second hand 
vehicle sales due to world-wide supply chain disruptions.
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State Revenue

Outcome 2: Due and payable revenue is collected and eligible grants, subsidies and rebates paid

The Department, through the Office of State Revenue, administers a range of revenue laws on behalf of the Government. This involves 
the collection of revenue raised and payment of grants and subsidies under relevant legislation, as well as a number of administrative-
based schemes.

Key effectiveness indicators for revenue collection provide a measure of the accuracy of the revenue assessment process, the level 
of compliance by taxpayers and the timeliness of processing assessments. These are considered the key elements in the effective 
collection of revenue.

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09  
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Extent to which due revenue is collected 88% 90% 90% 87% 91%

Overdue debt as a percentage of revenue raised (1) 1.42% 1.47% 1.18% 1.80% 1.26%

Extent to which correct grants, subsidies and rebates are paid 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%

(1) The variation to target resulted from additional resources being allocated to the Recovery area in 2011-12, supported by a larger than expected reduction in 
outstanding duties revenue as a result of increased take-up of Revenue Online. 
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Government Procurement

Outcome 3: Value-for-money from public sector procurement

This outcome aims to deliver value-for-money procurement services and frameworks across the Western Australian public sector. Value-
for-money is a key policy objective and ensures public authorities achieve the best possible outcome for the amount of money spent when 
purchasing goods and services.

Value-for-money from public sector procurement is considered effective if:

• client agencies agree that common use contracting arrangements are awarded and managed on a value-for-money basis
• client agencies agree that their contracts are awarded on a value-for-money basis

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09  
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Extent to which client agencies agree that common use contract arrangements achieved value-for-money 92% 83% 85% 85% 94%

Extent to which client agencies agree that their contract arrangements achieved value-for-money 82% 92% 90% 85% 95%

3.1  The variation between the 2011-12 Actual and the 2011-12 Target of 85% is due to new and re-developed Common Use Arrangements, which have improved 
transparency through greater client involvement, streamlined and flexible buying practices and achieved a more competitive market place. 

3.2 The 2011-12 Actual is higher than the 2011-12 Target of 85% due to the increasingly productive and effective working relationship with agencies and the 
ongoing investment in the skills of our staff.

3.3 The following table demonstrates the response rate and confidence levels for the Common Use Contract Arrangements and Client Agency Contract 
Arrangements.

Key indicators of effectiveness Common Use Contract Arrangements Client Agency Contract Arrangements

Number of surveys sent 1485 708

Number of responses 1415 691

Response Rate 95% 98%

Confidence level 99% 99%
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Shared Services

Outcome 4: Provision of effective shared corporate services

In December 2011, the government took the decision to decommission the Office of Shared Services and to return responsibility for the 
provision of corporate services to agencies. It is planned that agencies will progressively transition from the current Shared Services 
Centre operating environment to new arrangements with the last agency transition due to occur in December 2013.

The Shared Services Centre will operate until the last agency has transitioned in December 2013. This will require balancing the need to 
maintain services with the need to support staff to moving to new positions in other agencies.

The Key Performance Indicators included in the table below are from the 2011-12 Budget Papers. As a consequence of the Government’s 
decommissioning decision, the indicators relating to the “number of agencies rolling in by financial quarter” and “percentage of agencies 
rolled in compared to the total number to be rolled in” are not applicable for 2011-12.

These indicators have been adjusted in the  2012-13 Budget Papers to reflect the decision to decommission the Office of Shared Services.

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09  
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Progress with the reform of the Western Australian public sector for shared services by achievement 
of the following milestones:

- number of agencies rolled in by financial quarter (1)

Qtr 1 – 2

Qtr 2 – 3

Qtr 3 – 3

Qtr 4 – 2

Qtr 1 – 3

Qtr 2 – 6

Qtr 3 – 2

Qtr 4 – 1

Qtr 1 – 3

Qtr 2 – 6

Qtr 3 – 2

Qtr 4 – 1

Qtr 1 – 0 

Qtr 2 – 0

Qtr 3 – 0

Qtr 4 – 4

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
- percentage of agencies rolled in compared to the total number to be rolled in 33% 45% 45% 70% N/A

Percentage of services provided within established timeframes 99% 86% 86% 100% 94%

Accuracy of services provided 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Average resolution rate of enquiries (within six working days) 89% 85% 80% 80% 90%

(1) Includes agencies that have re-joined for payroll services after initially only rolled in for finance services.
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As stated, the indicators in relation to agency roll ins are not applicable (N/A). The Government ceased agencies rolling in to Shared 
Services in February 2011, prior to the decision to decommission Shared Services.

The percentage of services provided within established timeframes was below target due to the introduction of a new project module in 
2011. The change required a revision of the reconciliation process that took longer than anticipated to develop and implement.
The average resolution rate is better than the target by 12.5 per cent as a result of improved processes and knowledge in the Customer 
Service Centre.

Building Management and Works

Outcome 5: Value-for-money from the management of the Government’s non-residential buildings and public works

Over 2010-11, Building Management and Works reviewed its key indicators to better measure its effectiveness against its key service 
areas.  These new indicators were introduced in 2011-12. 

Building Management and Works intends to further review its indicators to ensure that they remain appropriate and reflect the initiatives 
adopted by the Department to improve value-for-money in the management of the Government’s non-residential buildings and public 
works. This is the first year that results for these indicators have been published.

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Percentage of significant projects in the New Buildings program delivered within:

- 10% of approved budget N/A N/A N/A 100% 100%

- three months of approved timeframe N/A N/A N/A 100% 64%

Planned maintenance as a percentage of the total maintenance program N/A N/A N/A 45% 50%

Average office accommodation floor space per work point N/A N/A N/A 18.0m² 15.9m²

Key factors contributing to the lower than target indicator for the delivery of New Buildings within specified timeframes were delays due to 
inclement weather, agency delays in land assembly (including the provision of services to sites) and latent (or unforseen) site conditions. 
The increase in the Planned Maintenance indicator from 45 per cent to 50 per cent is a significant improvement and highlights that 
agencies are spending larger amounts on planned maintenance and breakdown repairs.  Our aim is to encourage agencies to increase 
their program of Planned Maintenance which should result in a reduction in breakdowns.

The average office accommodation floor space indicator is based on a physical count of work points across 50 per cent of the total 
portfolio. All premises counted were in the Perth central business district (CBD), CBD fringe and greater metropolitan area. The results 
are for 32 agencies and includes some premises involved in Master Planning Phase 1. The remaining 50 per cent of the total portfolio, 
including regional office accommodation, will be counted during the current 2012-13 financial year.
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Public Utilities Office 

Outcome 6: A sustainable, efficient, secure and competitive energy sector

In April 2012, the Public Utilities Office was established following the abolition of the former Office of Energy to provide a range of 
services on energy matters to the Minister for Energy, the Western Australian Government, the energy sector and the Western Australian 
community.

The key effectiveness indicators measure the effectiveness of the Public Utilities Office in meeting the energy policy development 
requirements of Government and in meeting targets for increasing the sustainable energy generation that replaces traditional energy 
generation and in improving electricity security and supply.

The 2011-12 figures in the table below relate to the former Office of Energy for the period 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012: 

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which policy and program development objectives for the year are achieved N/A N/A N/A 75% 62.4%

- Kilowatt hours displaced N/A N/A N/A 12,703,026 8,956,078

- Kilowatt hours avoided N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Percentage of Perth metropolitan homes serviced with underground power N/A N/A N/A 53.17% 53.46%

The 2011-12 figures in the table below relate to the new Public Utilities Office for the period 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012: 

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which policy and program development objectives for the year are achieved N/A N/A N/A 25% 10.8%

- Kilowatt hours displaced N/A N/A N/A 4,234,342 1,566,806

- Kilowatt hours avoided N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Percentage of Perth metropolitan homes serviced with underground power N/A N/A N/A 0.33% 0.38%
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For comparative purposes, figures for 2009-10 and 2010-11 relating to the former Office of Energy (as reported in its previous Annual 
Reports) are included in the table below.  The figures for 2011-12 are for the full reporting period and include nine months of data for the 
Office of Energy and three months data for the Public Utilities Office.

Key indicators of effectiveness 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

The extent to which policy and program development objectives for the year are achieved (1) N/A 79% 81% 100% 73.2%

- Kilowatt hours displaced (2) N/A 143,729,548 21,807,941 16,937,368 10,522,884

- Kilowatt hours avoided (3) N/A 285,774 45,688 N/A N/A

Percentage of Perth metropolitan homes serviced with underground power (4) N/A 51% 52.2% 53.5% 53.84%

(1) This indicator presents results in relation to policy and program development effort towards achieving a sustainable, efficient, secure and affordable energy 
sector.  The indicator  encapsulates the policy priorities with  target  dates  for  completion during the reporting period with results presented as a percentage  of 
planned priorities  completed.

The  results are calculated by monitoring the priorities set for a year in the annual operational plan.  If the Government’s priorities change, for example when there 
is a Ministerial request to undertake a new policy project or cease working on an existing priority, this is taken into account when determining the number of items 
completed as planned.  The results for 2011-12 are underpinned by 73 per cent of 48 policy and program development priorities being completed or partially 
completed during the year. The variation from target is due to the rescheduling of some projects to better align their delivery timelines with external regulatory 
processes and changes in Government priorities.

(2) This indicator presents results in relation to efforts to achieve a sustainable and efficient energy sector.  This indicator provides information regarding the extent 
to which increases in the adoption of sustainable energy generation displaces traditional energy generation. Programs that contribute to kilowatt hours being 
displaced contribute to the results reported for this indicator.
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The results for 2011-12 are based on the following kilowatt hours displaced:

• Renewable Remote Power Generation Program

 ○ Remote Area Power Supply Program (Large Projects) 541,368 kWh

 ○ Remote Area Power Supply Program 82,008kWh 

 ○ Rural Renewable Energy Program (Medium Projects) 0 kWh 

• Solar Water Heater Subsidy Scheme 9,281,211kWh 

• Western Australian Solar Schools’ Program 618,297kWh 

Total kilowatt hours displaced 10,522,884kWh 

The variation from target is due to delays in bringing the Denmark Community Wind Farm into operation, which has resulted in the total kilowatt hours 
displaced being 6,000,000 kWh below target. The wind farm is expected to be operational in 2012-13.

(3) This indicator presents results in relation to efforts to achieve a sustainable and efficient energy use.  This indicator provides information regarding the extent to 
which energy consumption decreases as a result of the implementation of energy efficiency programs, such as rebates for energy efficient appliances.  Programs 
that contribute to kilowatt hours being avoided will contribute to the results reported for this indicator.

The Regional Energy Efficiency Program, which was the only program contributing to this indicator, closed in 2010-11.

(4) This indicator reports the extent to which an ongoing program to have power lines placed underground is being achieved.  Placing power cables underground 
gives improved security and reliability of supply; therefore this indicator presents results in relation to efforts to achieve energy security.

The data is produced by the Distribution Facilities Management System (DFIS) managed by Western Power and reported to the Public Utilities Office.  The data 
represents the power meters connected to underground low voltage in the Perth Metropolitan area as defined by Western Power.  

Underground power continues to be installed according to the program funding provided by Government, Western Power and the local governments.
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Key Efficiency Indicators

Government Procurement 

Service 1: State Fleet Service

The Department is responsible for managing the State’s motor vehicle fleet to ensure an efficient and effective use of Government 
vehicles with particular attention to the delivery of a sustainable public sector fleet.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per vehicle of financing and managing the State Fleet Service $139 $85 $84 $131 $83

The actual result for 2011-12 was better than target due to the overall cost of service being less than anticipated.  
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State Revenue 

Service 2: Revenue Assessment and Collection

The assessment and collection of a range of statutory-based revenues, including:

• those for which the Commissioner of State Revenue has direct responsibility  (duties, land tax and pay-roll tax)
• those that are collected on behalf of other agencies (such as Perth Parking Licence fees) or other jurisdictions (for example, 

collection of a range of taxes for the Commonwealth in the Indian Ocean Territories)

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per land tax item assessed (1) $10.79 $9.83 10.14 $11.07 $9.93

Average cost per insurance duty client (1) $1,196.84 $642.02 629.51 $808.66 $665.85

Average cost per pay-roll tax client (1) $579.84 $600.98 508.65 $543.33 $455.41

Average cost per duties instrument assessed manually (2) $101.88 $67.27 89.39 $129.23 $151.74

Average cost per duties instrument assessed electronically (2) $26.17 $44.73 34.26 $16.61 $25.95

(1) The 2011-12 average cost per item is lower than budgeted for these indicators due to lower than anticipated costs, including those associated with valuations 
and corporate services. 

(2) The 2011-12 average cost per duties item assessed was higher than budgeted due to a lower than expected number of instruments resulting from flat property 
market activity combined with an increase in costs associated with engaging specialist services associated with complex assessments.
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Service 3: Grants and Subsidies Administration
This service involves the assessment and payment of a range of grants and subsidies under both statutory and administrative schemes. 
The major payments relate to the First Home Owner Grant scheme and concessions on water and local government rates and the 
emergency services levy for pensioners and seniors.
This service contributes to the desired outcome that due and payable revenue is collected and eligible grants, subsidies and rebates are 
paid.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost per application/claim processed (1) $10.86 $8.31 $8.76 $8.82 $9.32

(1) The average cost per application/claim in 2011-12 was 5.7 per cent higher than anticipated driven by higher than anticipated costs due to a greater compliance 
emphasis during the year, combined with a slightly lower level of application activity. 
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Government Procurement

Service 4: Facilitate the Development and Management of Agency Specific Contracts

Government agencies effectively managing procurement risks and establishing contracts that deliver value-for-money and efficiently 
meet their operational needs.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of facilitating the development and management of agency specific contracts as a percentage of the 
contract award value 1.6% 2.0% 1.9% 1.4% 2.1%

The variance between the 2011-12 target and actual is due to a combination of:

• A number of large value contracts being awarded at a lower value than original estimated
• A delay in the projected awarding of high value contracts due to their complexity 

This increase was partially offset by a reduction in costs as a result of a higher than expected vacancy rate due to the highly competitive 
procurement job market. 

Service 5: Development and management of whole-of-government common use contract arrangements

Leads a whole-of-government approach to procurement that efficiently meets the needs of agencies and delivers value for money from 
public sector procurement.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of developing and managing whole-of-government common use contract arrangements as a 
percentage of the total annual value of purchases through the arrangements 1.4% 1.2% 1.1% 1.2% 1.4%

The variance between the 2011-12 target and actual is due to the increased costs as a result of the internal transfer of Online Technologies 
to Government Procurement from the Office of Shared Services.
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Shared Services

Service 6: Project management, coordination and implementation of the whole-of-government shared corporate services reform

Following the acceptance by Government of the recommendation of the Economic Regulation Authority to decommission the Shared 
Services business, a two year decommissioning project commenced in January 2012. Consequently, this efficiency indicator is not 
applicable as it referred to capital cost of building the business system and rolling in agencies.

Information regarding the cost incurred until the decision to decommission was made and the actual cost of decommissioning to 30 June 
2012 is detailed in the note below this indicator.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Progress with the reform of the Western Australian public sector for shared corporate services within 
budget:
- delivery of project within budgeted target ($ million) $43.127 $42.189 $36.555 $17.536 N/A

The capital cost of the project for 2011-12 prior to the Government decision to decommission Shared Services was $4.529 million.
Subsequently the service has been changed to the Program Management of the Decommissioning Project and during the period to  
30 June 2012, $6.631 million has been spent on the Decommissioning Project.
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Service 7: Provision of financial and human resources services

Shared Services was responsible for providing finance, procurement, human resources, and payroll services to 59 Government agencies 
across the public sector during 2011-12.

As at 30 June 2012, no agency has been completely rolled out although the human resource function has been fully decommissioned 
and responsibility returned to agencies.

Further commentary on the financial impact on 2011-12 target estimates is detailed in the notes below this indicator

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost of processing financial services per transaction N/A $57.17 $35.32 $38.96 $33.29
Cost of providing human resource/payroll services per agency headcount N/A $5,901 $3,750 $2,464 $4,018

The decision by Government to decommission Shared Services affected a number of drivers used to calculate these indicators.  Below 
is a summary of the impact of these changes.

1. Depreciation on the Oracle asset has been accelerated due to the decision to decommission. This resulted in a higher than budgeted 
depreciation cost and subsequent cost per service.

2. The ceasing of agency roll ins to the Shared Services environment resulted in a lower number of staff paid through the payroll 
system than planned and increased the cost per agency head count.

3. The number of financial transactions processed was higher than anticipated primarily due to the roll in of Building Management and 
Works in 2011.  This resulted in a reduced cost per transaction compared with the target figure.
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Building Management and Works

Service 8: Leads the planning and delivery of new Government buildings

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the planning, project management and procurement of new non-residential buildings.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage of the total annual value of the planning and delivery of capital works projects N/A 4.4% 3.9% 4.5% 5.1%

The fluctuation in this KPI across the years is the result of movements in the value of the Capital Works/New Buildings’ program delivered 
to Government agencies.  

The variance between the 2011-12 target and actual is due to a change in BMW’s overhead allocation methodology since the 2011-12 
Budget was formulated.  



Overview Performance Issues Disclosures AppendicesContents

Key Performance Indicators 96Department of Finance Annual Report 2011-2012

Service 9: Leads the planning and delivery of Government building maintenance

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the planning, project management and procurement of maintenance for non-residential 
buildings.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage of the annual value of maintenance services delivered N/A 8.8% 11.1% 10.4% 10.2%

The fluctuation in this KPI across the years is the result of movements in the value of the maintenance program delivered to Government 
agencies.  

The variance between the 2011-12 target and actual is due to a change in BMW’s overhead allocation methodology since the 2011-12 
Budget was formulated.  

Service 10: Leads the planning and delivery of Government office accommodation

Provides strategic leadership and facilitation in the planning, project management and procurement of government office accommodation.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Cost as a percentage of the value of gross rentals of buildings and office accommodation managed N/A 6.7% 11.1% 11.6% 12.1%

The fluctuation in this KPI across the years is the result of movements in the value of gross rentals of buildings and office accommodation 
managed.  

The variance between the 2011-12 target and actual is due to a change in BMW’s overhead allocation methodology since the 2011-12 
Budget was formulated.  
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Public Utilities Office

Service 11: Development and implementation of energy policy and programs

The delivery of energy policy and programs that enable the PUO to lead development and implementation of policy to meet the State’s 
energy needs.

In April 2012, the new PUO was established within the Department of Finance, following the abolition of the former Office of Energy on 
31 March 2012.

The 2011-12 figures in the table below relate to the former Office of Energy for the period 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012 

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine policy and program tasks N/A N/A N/A $4,400 $4,655
Average cost of policy projects and program N/A N/A N/A $90,000 $63,144
Average cost of processing sustainable energy incentive applications N/A N/A N/A $210 $282

The 2011-12 figures in the table below relate to the new PUO for the period 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine policy and program tasks N/A N/A N/A $4,400 $4,218

Average cost of policy projects and program N/A N/A N/A $90,000 $45,211
Average cost of processing sustainable energy incentive applications N/A N/A N/A $210 $487
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For comparative purposes figures for 2009-10 and 2010-11 relating to the former Office of Energy (as reported in its previous Annual 
Reports) are included in the table below.  The figures for 2011-12 are for the full reporting period and include nine months of data for the 
Office of Energy and three months data for the PUO.

Key indicators of efficiency 2008-09 
Actual

2009-10  
Actual

2010‑11 
Actual

2011‑12 
Target

2011‑12 
Actual

Average cost of routine policy and program tasks (1) N/A $2,874 $3,830 $4,400 $4,544
Average cost of policy projects and program (2) N/A $56,856 $69,809 $90,000 $57,547
Average cost of processing sustainable energy incentive applications (3) N/A $205 $237 $210 $315

(1) This indicator reports the average cost of policy and program tasks, such as ministerial correspondence, which are more routine in nature and require a modest 
investment of time and effort. 

The result for 2011-12 is based on an allocation of 25 per cent of operational staff time being attributed to this indicator.  This corresponds to $3.54 million of 
agency expenditure which is apportioned to 779 tasks that were completed during the reporting period.

(2) This indicator reports the average cost of policy and programs, such as submissions to Cabinet, which are more significant in nature and require a considerable 
investment of time and effort. 

The result for 2011-12 is based on an allocation of 68 per cent of operational staff time being attributed to this indicator. This corresponds to $9.03 million of 
agency expenditure which is apportioned to 157 projects that were completed during the reporting period. 

The variation from target is due to a higher number of projects being completed than anticipated when calculating the target.  The total cost of agency expenditure 
attributable to this indicator was also less than expected.

(3) This indicator reports the average cost of processing sustainable energy incentive applications, such as solar water heater rebate applications, which are 
consistent in the nature of the processing procedure and require a modest investment of time and effort.

The result for 2011-12 is based on an allocation of seven per cent of operational staff time being attributed to this indicator.  This corresponds to $0.83 million of 
agency expenditure which is apportioned to 2,642 applications that were paid during the reporting period.  The variation from target is due to the total number of 
applications being lower than anticipated.
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Other Financial Disclosures

Pricing Policies of Services Provided 

The Department’s fees and charges are 
reviewed annually in accordance with the 
Government’s policy and increases are 
limited to CPI as advised by Treasury. 

Where possible full cost recovery is sought 
pursuant to the Department’s policy for 
fees and charges. 

The fees charged by The Building 
Management and Works Permit Authority 
as calculated by the Building Commission 
are prescribed in the Building Regulations 
2012.

Ministerial Directives

Treasurer’s Instruction 903(12) requires the 
Department to disclose information on any 
Ministerial directives relevant to the setting 
and achievement of desired outcomes  
operational objectives, investment and 
financing activities.

No Ministerial directives were received 
during 2011-12.

Capital Projects
In 2011-12, $244 million was spent on capital investments. The key capital projects are 
detailed in the table below.

Project
Expected 

completion 
date

Actual 
expenditure 

2010‑11 
$000

Actual 
expenditure 

2011‑12 
$000

Estimated 
cost to 

complete 
$000

Estimated 
total cost 

$000

Master Planning Strategy - Government 
Office Accommodation 2017  41,226  96,434  88,185  225,845 

Cabinet Offices 2013  56  8,569  16,875  25,500 

State Fleet annual vehicle acquisition 
program 2012  -  123,233  -  - 
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Industrial relations

The majority of Departmental staff are 
employed under the Public Service and 
Government	Officers	General	Agreement	
2011.  At the close of the reporting year 
four staff were employed under the 
Salaries and Allowances Tribunal Act 
1975.   The Department also has an 
Agency Specific Agreement in place with 
provisions available to employees, such 
as a wellness program, motor vehicle 
allowance (for business use) and flexible 
working arrangements.

With the announcement during the year of 
the decommissioning of Shared Services, 
the Department took a proactive approach 
and engaged in discussions with the CPSU 
CSA.  

There were no significant industrial 
relations issues during 2011-12.

Staff Profile 2011‑12
Permanent Full Time 1207

Contract Full Time 161

Part Time Permanent and 
Contract 135

Seconded In 41

Seconded Out 31

Comparative data not available  
Part time = hours < Normal hours which are 
37.5 or 38

Source Data: June 2012 MOIR data and 
June 2012 secondment report 

Employment and Industrial Relations

Comparative FTE allocation by category 

The Department managed its resourcing 
requirements within the constraints of the 
full-time equivalent (FTE) ceiling of 1660 
during the year. 

Ongoing adjustments will be made to the 
FTE ceiling during the 2012-13 year as 
positions are transferred to other agencies 
with the decommissioning of Shared 
Services.
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Governance Disclosures

Senior Officers

For 2011-12, other than normal contracts of 
employment service, no senior officers, or 
firms of which senior officers are members, 
or entities in which senior officers have 
any substantial interests, had any interests 
in existing or proposed contracts with the 
Department and senior officers.

Other Legal Requirements

Advertising
In accordance with section 175ZE of 
the Electoral Act 1907, the Department 
incurred the following expenditure for 
advertising, market research, polling, 
direct mail and media advertising:

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 
Outcomes

The Department is committed to ensuring 
that people with disabilities, their families 
and carers are able to fully access our 
services and facilities (both in-house 
and contracted) and they are provided 
with the same opportunities, rights and 
responsibilities that are enjoyed by all 
people in the community.

In 2011 the Department established a 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 
(DAIP) Planning Committee, comprising 
a representative from each business 
area and three people with personal or 
professional knowledge of disabilities, to 
oversee the implementation, review and 
evaluation of the strategies and objectives 
of the plan.  The Committee provides a 
forum for communication and advice on 
DAIP issues and makes recommendations 
that need to be referred to the Corporate 
Executive.

Significant progress was made on the 
Department’s new Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plan 2012-2017 to support the 
principles and to meet the objectives of the 
Disability Services Act 1993 WA.  At the 
end of the reporting period the document 
was released for internal and external 
consultation and was expected to be 
finalised in July 2012.

Demonstrating its commitment to create 
a work environment that is inclusive and 
free from discrimination and to meet its 
obligations under the Act during the year, 
the Department:

• Maintained and promoted policies, a 
code of conduct and strategies that 
prohibit discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation of employees with a 
disability

• Assessed office buildings, facilities 
(including reception and client contact 
areas) and ACROD parking to enable 
access wherever possible to people 
with disabilities

• Selected appropriately designed 
signage for buildings 

• Ensured the Department’s published 
information can be requested in 
alternative format

Advertising Agencies
Adcorp $80,497

Community Newspapers $2,669

Optimum Media $262,876

Sensis Melbourne $1,186

Media Advertising Organisations
Advantage Communication and 
Marketing $80,188

Polling Organisations Nil

Direct Mail Nil

TOTAL EXPENDITURE $427,416
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Compliance with Public Sector 
Standards and Ethical Codes 

Toward the end of the 2011-12 year, 
the Public Sector Commission held an 
Employee Perception Survey across the 
Western Australian Public Sector.  Once 
the results are known, the Department 
can consider the results and target areas 
identified for improvement.

Information about Public Sector Standards 
is available to all staff and ongoing support 
is provided for members of recruitment 
panels to ensure compliance with relevant 
standards.  

The Department also has quality assurance 
processes in place to review all selection 
reports.  Additionally, support and advice is 
readily available though the Department’s 
People Strategy and Performance branch, 
to ensure that processes and transactions 
comply with the Standards.

In accordance with Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2003, the Department has 
a duly appointed Public Interest Disclosure 
Officer and published internal policies and 
procedures related to its obligations.  No 
public interest disclosures were received 
during the 2011-12 reporting year.

Governance
The Department is committed to ensuring 
that the affairs of the agency are managed 
appropriately, complying with legislative 
requirements, appropriate industry 
standards, practices and procedures and 
meet the ongoing needs of the Department.

The Corporate Executive has established 
sub-committees to improve governance 
in accordance with the nine public sector 
principles and increase accountability, 
probity and transparency in:

• Audit and risk
• Finance and procurement
• People and communications
• Technology governance

These sub-committees each have a 
program of works based on the priorities 
of the Department, audit findings and 
recommendations.  During the year Internal 
Audit completed a total of 20 audits across 
the businesses.

By the close of the year, the Strategic 
Workforce and Diversity Plan, Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan and a new 
Learning and Development Policy were 
finalised. 

During 2011-12, an ICT Work Plan was 
established and a significant amount of 
work progressed, leading towards a unified 
technology environment for services 
shared across business areas.  This work 
is expected to be completed in the first half 
of 2012-13.

Ethical Standards
The Department is committed to creating 
and maintaining a culture that supports 
ethical behaviours and actively discourages 
potentially corrupt acts.  

All new employees are fully inducted and 
information covers the expectation of high 
ethical behaviour, declarations of conflict 
and the responsibility to report suspected 
unethical behaviours or actions.  Reports 
of suspected misconduct are dealt with 
promptly and fairly.

During the year a revised Code of 
Conduct, incorporating the Code of Ethics, 
was developed.  Departmental policies 
are readily available and employees are 
aware through the Code of Conduct that 
there is an obligation to disclose interests 
that could reasonably create a perception 
of bias, or an actual conflict of interest.
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Record Keeping Plans
Compliance   with   the   State   
Records   Act   2000. 

The Department is committed to continuous 
improvement  through  ongoing assessment 
and  review of its recordkeeping plan, 
systems and processes.  The Department 
has demonstrated its commitment to 
compliance with the State Records Act 
2000 and developed a Recordkeeping 
Plan that was approved by the State 
Records Office on 7 March 2012.   
 
In addition to the plan, the Retention 
and Disposal Schedule was also 
revised and good progress is being 
made toward an endorsed status.  
 
During the reporting period, the records 
held by the former Office of Energy 
were migrated into the system and are 
maintained in accordance with the plan. 
 
Quality recordkeeping and training is 
provided to staff.  Mandatory records 
awareness training remains a critical 
component of every new employee’s 
induction and targeted training was 
conducted for staff in the Public Utilities 
Office prior to their roll-in to the Department.

 
An online awareness training program was 
launched early in 2012 with all employees 
enrolled in the training.  At the close of the 
year 24 per cent of staff had completed the 
training with an additional 11 per cent in 
progress.  

Automated reminders were put in place to 
improve the completion rate and intranet 
articles were published to further raise 
awareness. 

The Department has a published 
training calendar to deliver regular 
records management training at its 
main metropolitan sites.  Annual 
training is undertaken at regional sites.   
 
The value and effectiveness of the training 
provided is monitored and the Department 
is committed to continually improving the 
content and delivery of programs.

Government Policy Requirements

Substantive Equality

The Department is committed to providing 
services to meet the different needs of 
Western Australia’s diverse community.

In 2011-12, the Department’s Government 
Procurement business commenced a 
review of department policy and practice 
in strategic sourcing.  

It was proposed that the Needs Impact 
Assessment focused on the development 
and management of whole-of-government 
common use contract arrangements 
relating to goods and services, to ensure 
that they are consistent with substantive 
equality principles.  

In consultation with the Equal Opportunity 
Commission, the Department is developing 
wording that is appropriate to include in 
service request templates. 
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Occupational Safety, Health and Injury 
Management

Occupational Safety and Health
The Department reports information on 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) 
in accordance with the requirements of 
Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 
2009-11 and in support of the Western 
Australian Government commitment to the 
goals of the National Occupational Health 
and Safety Strategy 2002-2012.

The Department is committed to developing 
a culture of safety awareness and to 
provide a safe and healthy workplace for 
all employees and visitors.  

A notable change that occurred during 
the reporting period was the return of the 
OSH team to the Department from Shared 
Services.

The Department is acutely aware of the 
importance of training all employees 
in OSH and injury management.  An 
online e-learning OSH module has been 
developed and is being incorporated 
into the induction process for all new 
employees.  The Department recognises 
the percentage of managers trained is 
below the target and is taking steps to 
rectify this.

Elected Safety Health Representatives are 
actively involved in staff consultation and 
hazard management.  
 
Policies and procedures relating to 
occupational safety and health and injury 
management are reviewed annually and 
these are made available to all employees 
on the intranet.  The Department’s Safety 
Committee meets quarterly and the 
minutes from these meetings are also 
published on the intranet.

An internal assessment of an inherited 
OSH management system was conducted 
using the WorkSafe Plan assessment 
tool.  Recommendations continue to be 
implemented, with improvements being 
made in the areas of OSH consultation, 
hazard identification and issue resolution.  
An internal OSH audit is planned for the 
2012-13 reporting year.

Injury Management
The Department has an injury 
management policy and supporting 
guidelines in accordance with the Workers’ 
Compensation and Injury Management 
Act 1981. 

Where lost time or work restrictions 
are identified, the focus is on an early 
intervention approach to enable the 
employee to return safely to meaningful 
work as soon as practicable.  

To assist an injured employee, return-to-
work plans are developed by the OSH team 
in consultation with the employee and their 
manager and medical practitioner. 

Safety and Health Statistics

Indicator Target Actual

Number of fatalities Zero (0) 0

Lost-time injury/disease 
(LTI/D) incidence rate

Zero (0) 
or 10% 

reduction on 
the previous 

year

0.49

Lost-time injury severity 
rate

Zero (0) 
or 10% 

reduction on 
the previous 

year

28.6

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to work 
within 28 weeks

Actual 
percentage 
result to be 

reported

86%

Percentage of managers 
trained in occupational 
safety, health and 
injury management 
responsibilities

Greater than 
or equal to 

80%
8.32%

 
Comparative data not available
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Appendix 1:  Legislation 
Administered

Minister for Finance

Commonwealth Places (Mirror Taxes 
Administration) Act 1999
Duties Act 2008
First Home Owner Grant Act 2000
First Home Owner Grant Amendment Act 
2003
Land Tax Act 2002
Land Tax Assessment Act 2002
Pay-roll Tax Act 2002
Pay-roll Tax Assessment Act 2002
Pay-roll Tax Rebate Act 2010
Public Works Act 1902 (except Pt. 1A, 
which is administered by the Western 
Australian Building Management Authority)
Rates and Charges (Rebates and 
Deferments) Act 1992
Stamp Act 1921
Stamp Amendment (Assessment) Act 
2005
Stamp Amendment (Budget) Act 2002
Taxation Administration (Consequential 
Provisions) Act 2002
Taxation Administration Act 2003
State Supply Commission Act 1991

Minister for Energy

Dampier to Bunbury Pipeline Act 1997
Electricity Corporations Act 2005
Electricity Industry Act 2004 (except Pt. 9A, 
which is administered by the Department 
of Commerce)
Electricity Transmission and Distribution 
Systems (Access) Act 1994
Energy Arbitration and Review Act 1998
Energy Coordination Act 1994 (except 
Pt. 2 & 3 which are administered by the 
Department of Commerce)
Energy Corporations (Transitional and 
Consequential Provisions) Act 1994
Energy Operators (Powers) Act 1979
Fuel, Energy and Power Resources Act 
1972
Gas Corporation (Business Disposal) Act 
1999
Gas Services Information Act 2012
Gas	 Supply	 (Gas	 Quality	 Specifications)	
Act 2009 (except Pt. 5 Div. 2, which 
is administered by the Department of 
Commerce)
National Gas Access (WA) Act 2009
State Energy Commission (Validation) Act 
1978

The Department of Finance collected 
taxes, duties and fees, and paid 
subsidies, grants and rebates during 
2011‑12, in accordance with the 
legislation listed below:

Agriculture and Related Resources 
Protection Act 1976
Cattle Industry Compensation Act 1965
Emergency Services Levy Act 2002
Indian Ocean Territories (Administration of 
Laws) Act 1992
Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax Act 
1959
Perth Parking Management Act 1999
Perth Parking Management (Taxing) Act 
1999
Racing and Wagering Western Australia 
Act 2003
Racing and Wagering Western Australia 
Tax Act 2003
Commonwealth Places (Mirror Taxes) Act 
1998
Commonwealth Places (Mirror Taxes) 
(Modification	of	Applied	Laws	(WA))	Notice	
2007
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Appendix 2: Glossary of terms 
used in the Financial Statements

Accrual
Accrual basis accounting reports income 
when earned and expenses when incurred, 
as opposed to cash basis accounting, 
which reports income when received 
and expenses when paid.  Accruals are 
liabilities to pay for goods or services 
that have been received or supplied but 
have not been paid or invoiced.  Accrued 
expenses are usually included in payables.

Administered Funds/Transactions
Administered income and expenditure 
relates to funds that the Department may not 
utilise to achieve its day-to-day objectives.  
Administered appropriations and income 
is passed through the Department for 
specific purposes and is not the subject 
of departmental discretion.  Administered 
funds are also utilised for activities such as 
‘transfer payments’, e.g. grant payments 
where the Department has no discretion in 
the selection of eligible beneficiaries and/
or determining the amount of payment 
and/ or any conditions attaching to the 
payment.

Capital Appropriation
Funding allocated by Parliament to 
Government Departments to enable them 
to fund capital (asset) additions.

Contingent Liabilities/
Contingent Assets
A contingent liability is:
a) a possible obligation that arises from 
past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
entity; or 
b) a present obligation that arises from past 
events but is not recognised because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.  

A contingent asset is the inverse of a 
contingent liability.

Controlled Funds/Transactions
Controlled expenses form part of the cost 
of operating the agency in the pursuit of 
its objectives. Controlled expenses include 
those assets consumed, or liabilities 
incurred, in the process of providing 
departmental services for the purpose of 
performing the functions of the Department.  

Controlled expenses may include salaries 
and other employee entitlements; 
operating costs; depreciation; and grants 
and subsidies when the Department has 
discretionary powers as to recipient, value 
and conditions attaching to the payment of 
the grants/subsidies.

Depreciation
The cost of assets with a value above 
$5,000 is not charged to expenses through 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
in the year of purchase.  Such assets are 
capitalised in the Statement of Financial 
Position reflecting their enduring benefits 
to the organisation beyond the financial 
period in which they are purchased.  
Depreciation is a charge to expenses which 
recognises that the value of those assets 
will diminish over time, through wear and 
tear or obsolescence.  Upon capitalisation, 
the estimated useful life of the asset is 
determined and its value is written off to 
expense, through the depreciation charge, 
over that period, progressively reducing 
the carrying value of the asset being 
depreciated.
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Discount Unwound on Loan
Where a loan is provided at less than 
commercial value (e.g. at no interest), 
accounting standards require, upon 
initial recognition, the loan principle to 
be discounted to net present value, and 
the discount charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, representing the 
opportunity cost forgone by providing the 
loan at a discounted rate.  
This discount is subsequently written back 
or “unwound” each year over the life of the 
loan.

Effectiveness Indicators 
Key performance indicators that provide 
information on the extent to which agency 
level government desired outcomes have 
been achieved, or contributed to, through 
the delivery of services.

Efficiency Indicators
Key performance indicators that generally 
relate services to the level of resource 
inputs required to deliver them.

Equity
Equity is sometimes referred to as ‘net 
worth’ and represents the amount owners 
have invested in a business.  Equity is 
typically calculated as: what is owned 
(assets) minus what is owed (liabilities).

Historical Cost Convention
The historical cost convention states 
that all transactions are recorded at their 
original value and adjustments are not 
made for inflation.  Assets are not valued 
at market or realisable value, but stay in 
the accounting records at their historical or 
original price.

Holding Account
Special purpose accounts (held at the 
Department of Treasury on behalf of the 
Department of Finance) typically for capital 
acquisitions, leave payments and the 
27th pay accrual.  The 27th pay accrual 
recognises that every 11 years there will 
be 27 fortnightly pay periods in a financial 
year rather than the usual 26 pay periods.  
The 27th pay accrual progressively puts 
cash aside to fund the additional payment 
in the 11th year.  It is a cash transfer only 
and movements into or out of the holding 
account do not constitute expenses or 
revenue when they occur.  The holding 
account remains as an asset in the 
Agency’s Statement of Financial Position 
until it is utilised.

Infrastructure
Assets that provide a structural foundation 
for the community.

Intangible Asset
An intangible asset is defined as an 
identifiable non-monetary asset without 
physical substance. This definition includes 
computer software, trademarks, etc.

Owners
The Government of Western Australia.

Provisions
Accounting Standards require the 
recognition of a provision when:
a) an entity has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past event ;
b) it is probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation; 
c) a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.
There is more timing uncertainty for 
provisions than for accruals.  Common 
provisions include employee entitlements 
for leave.

Recurrent Expenditure
Recurrent expenditure on goods and 
services is expenditure which does not 
result in the creation or acquisition of fixed 
assets. It consists mainly of expenditure 
on salaries, grants, purchases of goods 
and services and other items which pass 
through the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.
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Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge relate 
to goods and/or services being provided 
free of charge from other entities within 
the Western Australian Government.  To 
acknowledge the value of these resources 
to the agency, their consumption is 
recorded as an expense item in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
the fair value of the resources provided 
is recorded as notional income.  No cash 
is exchanged or formal invoices levied in 
respect to the services.

Restricted Cash
Represents cash held in the controlled 
fund for a specific purpose, but for which 
some discretion may be exercised in 
carrying out the functions of the fund.

Service Appropriation
An appropriation is the amount of funding 
allocated by Parliament to government 
departments to facilitate the process of 
providing departmental services for the 
purpose of performing the functions of the 
department.  Appropriations can be both in 
cash and non-cash form.

Statement of Cash Flows
The cash flow statement is concerned with 
the flow of cash in and cash out of the 
business.  The statement captures both 
the current operating results and changes 
in the Statement of Financial Position.  
It takes into account payments for 
recurrent expenditure in addition to capital 
expenditure, includes income and equity 
injections from all sources and makes 
allowances for movements in accruals, 
provisions and assets when determining 
cash outflows.  It reconciles the opening 
and closing bank balances and explains 
significant movements over the year.

Statement of Changes in Equity
Bridges the gap between the amount of 
equity (financial injection) the owner has 
in the business at the beginning of the 
accounting period and the amount of equity 
at the end of the period.  Consequently, it 
contains information relevant to both the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
the Statement of Financial Position.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Itemises the revenues and expenditures 
that led to the year’s surplus or deficit. 
It excludes expenditures on asset 
purchases and direct equity contributions 
by owners. Comprehensive income 
attempts to measure the sum total of all 
operating and financial events that have 
changed the value of an owner’s interest 
in a business.  Previously known as the 
“Income Statement” or “Profit and Loss 
Statement”.

Statement of Financial Position
Reports on an organisation’s assets, 
liabilities and ownership equity. It is 
a snapshot at a given point in time.  
Previously known as the “Balance Sheet”.

Treasurer’s Instructions (TI)
Prescribed requirements at a minimum 
level with respect to matters of financial 
administration that have the force of law 
and must be observed by public sector 
agencies under the Financial Management 
Act 2006.
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Contact Details
150 William Street  
PERTH WA 6000
Office hours: 8am to 5pm, Monday to Friday
www.finance.wa.gov.au 

Postal Address: 
Locked Bag 11
CLOISTERS SQUARE WA 6850
Phone: (08) 6551 1000
Fax: (08) 6551 1111

Business unit addresses

Building Management and Works
Optima Centre 
16 Parkland Road 
OSBORNE PARK WA 6017 

Postal Address:  
Locked Bag 44  
CLOISTERS SQUARE WA 6850
Phone: (08) 6551 1600
Fax: (08) 6551 2333

Government Procurement
Optima Centre 
16 Parkland Road 
OSBORNE PARK WA 6017
Phone: (08) 6551 1555
Fax: (08) 9481 0785

State Revenue
QBE House 
200 St Georges Terrace 
PERTH WA 6000

Postal Address: 
GPO Box T1600  
PERTH WA 6845
Phone: (08) 9262 1400
WA Country Callers: 1300 368 364
Fax: (08) 9226 0842

Public Utilities Office
Level 1 
Albert Facey House 
469 Wellington Street 
PERTH WA 6000
Phone: (08) 6551 1000
Fax: (08) 6551 4765

Shared Services
Mason Bird Building
303 Sevenoaks Street 
CANNINGTON WA 6107
Phone: (08) 9258 0000
Customer Service Centre: 1300 345 677
Fax: (08) 9258 0303

Corporate Services 
150 William Street
PERTH WA 6000

Postal Address: 
Locked Bag 11
CLOISTERS SQUARE WA 6850
Phone: (08) 6551 1000
Fax: (08) 6551 1111



Department of Finance
Main Switch: (08) 6551 1000
www.finance.wa.gov.au
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